STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
OFFICE OF HUMAN SERVICES
BUREAU OF HOMELESS AND HOUSING SERVICES

Jeffrey A. Meyers

603-271-9196 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9196
Christine M. Tappan Fax: 603-271-5139 TDD Access: 1-800-736-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov
Senior Division
Director
July 5, 2017

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Bureau of Homeless and Housing
Services, to enter into a retroactive amendment to an existing agreement with Helping Hands
Outreach Ministries, Inc. 50 Lowell St, Manchester, NH, 03103 (Vendor #174226 B001), PO1045674 to
amend the scope of work to remove respite care services in support of the Safe Stations program with
no change to the price limitation or contract completion date, retroactive to July 1, 2017, effective
upon Governor and Executive Council approval through June 30, 2018. This is a no-cost amendment.
The original Contract was approved by Governor and Executive Council on August 26, 2015 (ltem #12),
and subsequently amended on September 21, 2016 (ltem #21A) and June 21, 2017 (Item#30) 100%
General.

05-95-42-423010-7928 (REPLACED BY 05-95-42-423010-7927 ON JULY 1, 2017) HEALTH AND
SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS:HUMAN SERVICES,
HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING- SHELTER PROGRAM

Activity | Current | |ncrease/ | Modified

SFY | Class/Object Title
Code | Amount |(Decrease)| Amount

Contracts for Program

2016 | 102-500731 . 42307020| $60,000 $0 $60,000
Services
Contracts for Program
2017 | 102-500731 . 42307020| $60,000 $0 $60,000
Services
Contracts for Program
2018 | 102-500731 42307020| $60,000 $0 $60,000

Services

Sub-total| $180,000 $0 $180,000

gl



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
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05-95-49-491510-2990 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS
DEPT OF, HHS: DIV OF COMM BASED CARE SVC, BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL
SVCS, CLINICAL SERVICES

SFY | Class/Object Title
Code | Amount |(Decrease)| amount

Contracts for Program

2016 | 102-500734 .
Services

n/a $0 $0 $0

Contracts for Program

2017 | 102-500734 )
Services

49158702 | $138,542 $0 $138,542

Contracts for Program

2018 | 102-500734 Services n/a $0 $0 $0
Sub-Total $0 $0 $138,542
TOTAL | $318,542 $0 $318,542
EXPLANATION

The amendment is being requested retroactively as the current vendor has notified the
Department that they will no longer be providing this service after June 30, 2017 and no funding was
provided to support services past June 30, 2017. This service is a critical component of the Manchester
Safe Stations program. Serenity Place, another partner in the program, has expressed their willingness
to take on this scope of work and to begin providing services July 1, 2017. The initial contract, which
shall still be in place with Helping Hands after this amendment, is for specialty shelter care for
homeless individuals.

Safe Stations is a Manchester-based program designed to be an access point whereby the ten
(10) fire houses throughout the city serve as a designated safe environment for individuals seeking
assistance with their substance use disorder. Anyone can walk into a fire station, be medically cleared,
and then be connected with a service provider within twenty-four (24) hours, to begin their treatment
and recovery. A key component of the Safe Stations program has been overnight respite care for
individuals in the program who would not otherwise have a safe place to sleep while they are waiting for
placement in treatment.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this Request, the contract will contain
a scope of service which the vendor will no longer provide and for which there is no funding in this
contract.

Area served: Manchester.
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Source of Funds: 100% GENERAL FUNDS

espectfully submitted,

Christine M. Tappa
Senior Division Director

Approved by:
rey A. Meyers
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
27 Hazen Dr., Concord, NH 03301
Fax: 603-271-1516 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964
www.nh.gov/doit

Denis Goulet
Commissioner

July 7, 2017

Jeffrey A. Meyers, Commissioner
Department of Health and Human Services
State of New Hampshire

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

Dear Commissioner Meyers:

This letter represents formal notification that the Department of Information Technology (DolT)
has approved your agency’s request to enter into a retroactive contract amendment with Helping Hands
Outreach Ministries (Vendor # 174226) of Manchester, NH as described below and referenced as DolT
No. 2018-036C.

The requested action authorizes the Department of Health and Human Services to enter
into a retroactive contract amendment with Helping Hands Outreach Ministries to
remove respite care services in support of the Safe Stations program. Helping Hands will
continue to provide specialty shelter care for homeless individuals.

This is a no change to the price limitation or contract completion date, retroactive to July
1, 2017, effective upon Governor and Council approval through June 30, 2018,

A copy of this letter should accompany the Department of Health and Human Services’
submission to the Governor and Executive Council for approval.

Sincerely,

Denis Goulet

DGr/kaf
DolT #2018-036C

cc: Bruce Smith, IT Manager, DoIT

"Innovative Technologies Today for New Hampshire's Tomorrow"



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
State Grant-In-Aid (SGIA) Funds Program

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #3 to the
State Grant-In-Aid {SGIA) Funds Program

This 3rd Amendment to the State Grant-In-Aid (SGIA) Funds Program (hereinafter referred to as
“Amendment #3") dated this 13" day of June, 2017, is by and between the State of New Hampshire,
Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department”) and
Helping Hands Outreach Ministries, Inc., (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor’), a non-profit
company with a place of business at 50 Lowell Street, Manchester, NH 03101.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on August 26, 2015 (Item#12) and subsequently amended on September 21, 2016 (item#21A) and June
21, 2017 (itemi#30), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to6 maké changes to thé scopé of work, payment
schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the State may at its sole discretion,
amend the contract upon written agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and Executive
Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to modify the Scope of Service without a change to the Price Limitation or
Completion Date, and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree as follows:

1. Delete Exhibit A, Amendment 1 in its entirety.
2. Delete Exhibit B, Amendment 1 in its entirety.

Helping Hands Outreach Ministries, Inc. Amendment #3 Contractor Initials: (.f

Al
2

16-DHHS-OHS-BHHS-02 Page 1 of 3 Date: ‘;’L



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
State Grant-In-Aid (SGIA) Funds Program

This amendment shalii be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Date 4 ame: Chy sty “Tappav
Title: Tyt riinn B ,(LQZCV) &yf
Helping Hands Outreach Ministries, Inc.

6[22\

Date Name: Charles E Therrien
Title: Chaimman of the Board

Acknowledgement of Contractor’s signature:

State of NH , County of H I\shryrx éa Ion (0'3\31) 1 , before the
undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified directly above, or satisfactorily proven to

be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the
capacity indicated above.

M&upakmdm‘

Signature of Notary Public or Justice-of-the-Peace

Diane Paradis . Moty

1

Name and Title of Notary or Justice-of the Peace

DIANE M. PARADIS, Notary Pubiic
MyCommlwonExpimsJUy 11,2017

My Commission Expires:

Helping Hands Outreach Ministries, Inc. Amendment #3 Contractor Initials:
16-DHHS-OHS-BHHS-02 Page 2 of 3 Date: 9 Q—*\\ ;



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
State Grant-In-Aid (SGIA) Funds Program

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Date L] Name: YW (v, £\ <z
Title: %&)%f\

| hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of

the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

Helping Hands Outreach Ministries, Inc. Amendment #3 Contractor Initials:
16-DHHS-OHS-BHHS-02 Page 3 of 3 Date: é i g’ 9*( lﬂ



State of Neto Hampshire
HBepartment of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby
certify that Helping Hands Outreach Ministries, Inc. is a New Hampshire nonprofit
corporation formed January 11, 1988. I further certify that it is in good standing as far as

this office is concerned, having filed the return(s) and paid the fees required by law.

In TESTIMONY WHEREQF, I hereto
set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 7" day of September A.D. 2016

ey Bkl

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State




QuickStart Page 1 of 1

Search Business Names @Backto Home (/online)

Search Result

. . . Principal Registered
Business Homestate Previous Business P egister

Business Name Office Agent Status
ID N N T
ame ame ype Address Name

50 Lowell
Helping Hands Outreach Ministries, Inc. Domestic  Street, Good
(/online/BusinessInquire/BusinessInformation? 125185 Nonprofit  Manchester, N/A Standin
businessID=37155) Corporation NH, 03101, 9

USA

Page 1 of 1, records 1 to 1 of 1
Back

NH Department of State, Corporation Division, State House Annex, 3rd Floor Room 317, 25 Capitol St, Concord, NH 03301
Email: corporate@sos.nh.gov (mailto:corporate%40sos.nh.gov)
© 2014 PCC Technology Group, LLC, All Rights Reserved.

https://quickstart.sos.nh.gov/online/BusinessInquire/BusinessSearch 7/3/2017



CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

1, Diane Paradis , do hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Agency; cannot be contract signatory)

1. L am a duly elected Officer of _Helping Hands Outreach Ministries, inc
(Agency Name)

2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duiy adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on 6/22/2017
(Date)

RESOLVED: That the Charles E Therrien fw\d-.pm&ﬂ ﬂ»ﬁ'};ﬂ e ém#)
(Title of Contract Signatory)

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

the &andday of _Junyg ,ZOD.
{Date Contract Signed)

4. Cil@[\d((o/hé’f’ ICV_is the duly elected _( l’_‘\gmgyﬂ ﬁ/g‘ Vl'e‘ﬁ _&r&

(Namé of Contract Signatery) {Title of Contract Signatory)

of the Agency.

/
;

(Signature of the Eiected Officer)
STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
County of HIHjL)OrbAﬁL
The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ‘2 & day of June , 20_ﬂ_,

By O{ ane M P"‘“—‘t‘j

{Name of Elected Officer of the Agen.cy)

/ﬁﬁtary Public/Justice of the Pea

ANTHONY M. GEMELLI
+ NOTARY PUBLIC - NEW HAMPSHIRE %

20
My Commission Expires October 7. 20
/Olr)iolﬁ}b M“"—_—

{NOTARY SEAL)

Commission Expires:

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations July 1, 2005
Bureau of Provider Relationship Management
Certificate of Vote Without Seal



N ,
ACORLD’ CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE o

3/3/2017

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: if the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER CONTACT Michael Caruso
FIAI/Cross Insurance PO £x). (603)669-3218 (F,{‘,él,@: 1603) 645-4331
1100 Elm Street Ag‘g}{kss:mcaruso@crossagency .com
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

Manchester NH 03101 INSURERA Harleysville Worcester Ins Co 26182
INSURED INSURER B :
Helping Hands Outreach Ministries Inc INSURER C :
50 Lowell St | nsurer D :

INSURERE :
Manchester NH 03101-1635 INSURERF :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:17-18 All lines REVISION NUMBER:

THIS 1S TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR ADDL[SUBR] POLICY EFF | POLICY EXP
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE INSD | [ POLICY NUMBER MM/DD {MMWDD/YYYY) LIMITS
X [ COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1,000,000
J DAMAGE TO RENTED
A CLAIMS-MADE IE OCCUR PREMISES (Ea occurrence) $ 100,000
MPA00000099914Y 1/1/2017 1/1/2018 | MED EXP (Any one person) $ 5,000
PERSONAL & ADV INJURY g 1,000,000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE 3 2,000,000
x|roucy [ %% [ Jioc PRODUCTS - COMPIOP AGG | 2,000,000
OTHER: Professional Liability $ 1,000,000
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY (Ea accident) $ 1,000,000
a X | ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) | $
ﬁbl_-rgg\/NED iS!F'ggULED BA 00000099916Y 1/1/2017 1/1/2018 | BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | $
NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE $
HIRED AUTOS AUTOS (Per accident)
Physical Damage Schedule $
X | UMBRELLALAB | X | oCcoUR EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1,000,000
a EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $ 1,000,000
DED [ ﬂ RETENTION $ 0 CMB00000099915Y 1/1/2017 1/1/2018 $
WORKERS COMPENSATION PER OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIN St | |6
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? D N/A
{Mandatory in NH) EL. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $
if yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E L DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | §
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be hed if more space Is required)
CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

Janice.Southwick@dhhs.nh.g
SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

State of New Hampshire THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
Dept. of Health & Human Services ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

(NH DHHS)

129 Pleasant Street AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Concord, NH 03301 %l—'—*—/
Michael Caruso/JSC @Mf

© 1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

ACORD 25 (2014/01) The ACORD name and iogo are registered marks of ACORD
INS025 1>01401)



® DATE (MM/D
ACORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE e/1tra017

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE iISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the

PRODUCER
Elliot Insurance Agency A Division Of

CONTACT peborah Stanhope
PN by (603)497-4143

f:,é Noj: (603)497-2521

Stanhope Associates, Inc s, dstanhope@elliot-ins.com
11 North Mast Street INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
Goffstown NH 03045 INSURER A :Ace American |
INSURED INSURER B :
Helping Hands Outreach Ministries, Inc. INSURER C -
50 Lowell Street INSURERD :
INSURERE :
Manchester NH 03101 INSURERF :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:CL1572002356 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR ADDL[SUBR POLICY EFF | POLICY EXP
LIR TYPE OF INSURANCE WYD POLICY NUMBER MM/D (MM/DDIYYYY) LIMITS
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE $
J DAMAGE TO RENTED
CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR PREMISES (Ea occurrence) | $
MED EXP {Any one person) 3
PERSONAL& ADVINJURY |§
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $
POLICY D JPECO' LoC PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG | $
OTHER: $
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY (Ea accident) S
ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY {Perperson) | $
ALL OWNED SCHEDULED v P ident
AUTOS oS BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | $
NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE $
HIRED AUTOS AUTOS Per accident)
$
UMBRELLA LIAB OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE $
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $
DED I l RETENTION $ $
WORKERS COMPENSATION PER OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIN | [sthrure [ [ B
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE D NIA E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $ 100,000
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
A {(Mandatory in NH) 6S62UB0G34221-4-17 4/17/2017 | 4/17/2018 | £ DISEASE - EA EMPLOYER § 100,000
If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LMIT | $ 500,000
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks S may be attached if more space is required)
all jobs all locations
CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

Janice.southwick@dhhs.nh.g

NH Department of Health & Human Services
129 Pleasant St
Concord, NH 03301

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

HEYT
Deborah Stanhope/FAUC ‘k’

ACORD 25 (2014/01)
INS025 on1401\

© 1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



Home

Mission Statement: Helping Hands Outreach Center, a faith-based community
service agency, exists to provide a safe, sober living environment for men in
recovery from substance abuse and addiction and help them to discover and
employ the tools necessary to live responsible and productive lives



HELPING HANDS OUTREACH MINISTRIES, INC.
FINANCIAL REPORT
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016




CONTENTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statement of Financial Position

Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Assets
Statement of Functional Expenses

Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to Financial Information

Page

Ln o4 LI DN

(=)

—
<




JOHN RILEY & COMPANY

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT
P.O. Box 234

CENTER BARNSTEAD, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03225-02324
Cell 603-731-9854 jriley_wp@tds.net

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Helping Hands Outreach Ministries, Inc.
Manchester, New Hampshire

We have audited the accompanying statement of financial position of Helping Hands Outreach Ministries, Inc. as of
June 30, 2016, and the related statements of activities and cash flows for the year then ended.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these {inancial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our
audits in accordance with auditing standards gencrally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement.

An audit includes performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal controf relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we €Xpress no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sutticient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly. in all material respects, the financial
position of Helping Hands Outreach Ministries, Inc. as of June 30, 2016, and the results of its operations, changes
in its net assets and its cash flows for the vear then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

,\Mﬂma RN

Y

ter ew Hampshire
August 19,2016




HELPING HANDS OUTREACH MINISTRIES, INC.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
JUNE 30, 2016

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and equivalents
Accounts and grants receivable

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, at cost
Land and buildings
Building improvements
Furniture and equipment

Less accumulated depreciation

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Note payable, bank
Current maturities of long-term debt

Accounts payable and accrued expenses

OTHER LIABILITY, long-term debt less current maturities

NET ASSETS
Unrestricted net assets
Temporarily restricted net assets

See Notes to Financial Statements

3 1,283

1,283

892,912
68,842
62,004
1,023,758

__(261,984)
761,774

$ 763,057

$ 39,864
37,463
46,433

123,760

589,448

49,849

49.849

5__ 763057

e vmmosre on e o



HELPING HANDS OUTREACH MINISTRIES, INC.
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Year Ended June 30, 2016

UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS
Revenue and Support:
Support - public agencies
Support - individuals, corporations and churches
Rents
Program service revenues
Interest income

Net assets released from restrictions
Functional expenses:
Program services

Management and general
Fundraising

increase in unrestricted net assets

TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS
Support - public agencies
Net assets released from restrictions
Satisfaction of donor-imposed restrictions
Increase in temporarily restricted net assets
Operating (Idss)
NET ASSETS, beginning of year

NET ASSETS, end of year

See Notes to Financial Statements

:) 27,300
2,780

28,959
156,948

1

215,988

64,517

280,505

235,986
7,365

243,351

37,154

64,517

(64,517)

37,154

12,695

$ 49,849




HELPING HANDS OUTREACH MINISTRIES, INC.
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
Year Ended June 30, 2016

Program Management
Services & General Fundraising Total
Automobile expense 3 3,084 - 8§ - 9 3,064
Salaries and wages 62,672 - - 62,672
Payroll taxes 4 861 - - 4 861
Depreciation and amortization 21,640 - - 21,640
Employee benefit - major medical 6,545 - - 6,545
Insurance - worker compensation 6,811 - - 6,811
Insurance - Directors - - - -
Occupancy:
Insurance - building 7478 - - 7,478
Repairs and maintenance 26,822 - - 26,822
Utilities : 49,831 - - 49,831
Equipment rental 1,092 - - 1,092
Office supplies and expense 1,696 1,696 - 3,392
Bank service charges 464 - - 464
Professionat fees - 5,483 - 5,483
Shelter supplies 7.754 - - 7,754
Gendran House supplies 3,227 - - 3,227
Interest expense 26,075 - - 26,075
Telephone & internet 1,705 - - 1,705
Benevolence 200 - - 200
Staff development 50 - - 50
Other direct program expenses 3,999 186 - 4,185
3 235986 $ 7365 § -3 243.351

See Notes to Financial Statements




HELPING HANDS OUTREACH MINISTRIES, INC.
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Year Ended June 30, 2016

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Increase in net assets $
Adjustments to reconcile increase (decrease) in net assets to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation
{Decrease) in accounts payable and accrued expenses
Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments for equipment additions
Net cash (used in) investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of note payable
Repayments of long-term debt
Net cash (used in) financing activities
Net (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash payments for:
Interest $

See Notes to Financial Statements

37,154

21,640

(10,198)
48,596

(1,231)
(1,231)

(6,422)

(41,326)
(47,748)

(383)

1,666

1,283

26075




HELPING HANDS OUTREACH MINISTRIES, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2016

NOTE 1. NATURE OF ORGANIZATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Organization:

Helping Hands Outreach Ministries, Inc. (the Ministry) is a New Hampshire nonprofit
corporation organized to provide services to the needy such as transitional housing, food,

clothing and other services 5o as to provide relief from poverty and distress in the community.

The Ministry is supported primarily through donor contributions and grants.

Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of accounting:
The financial records of the Ministry are maintained on the accrual basis of accounting.

Financial Statement Presentation:

The Ministry adheres to the Presentation of Financial Statements for Not-for-Profit
Organizations topic of the FASB Accounting Standards Codification as expressed in FASC
ASC 958-205. Under ASC 958-205, the Ministry is required to report information
regarding its financial position and activities according to three classes of net assets:
unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets and permanently restricted net
assets. As of June 30, 2016, the Ministry had no permanently restricted net assets.

The Ministry accounts for contributions received in accordance with FASB ASC 958-605.
In accordance with ASC 958-603, contributions received are recorded as unrestricted,
temporarily restricted, or permanently restricted support, depending on the existence or
nature of any donor restrietions. ASC 958-310 requires that unconditional promises to give
(pledges) be recorded as receivables and recognized as revenues.

Cash and Cash Equivalents:

For purpose of the statement of cash flows, the Ministry considers cash and cash
equivalents to include only cash on hand, cash in checking accounts, and certain savings
accounts, certificates of deposit and money market accounts if readily available for current
operations.

Promises to Gives:

Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to the Ministry, that
is, in substance, unconditional. Contributions that are restricted by the donor are reported
as increases in net assets if restrictions expire within the fiscal vear in which the
contribution is recognized. All other donor-restricted contributions are reported as
temporarily or permanently restricted net assets depending upon the nature of the
restrictions. When a restriction expires, temporarily restricted assets are reclassified to
unrestricted net assets.




HELPING HANDS OUTREACH MINISTRIES, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
June 30, 2016

NOTE 1. NATURE OF ORGANIZATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Income Tax Status:

The Ministry is exempt from federal income tax under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code. However, any income from activities not directly related to the Ministry's
tax-exempt purpose 1s subjected to taxation as unrelated business income. In addition, the
Ministry qualifies for the charitable contribution deduction under Section 170(b)(1)(A) of
the Code, and has been classified as an organization that is not a private foundation under
Section 509(a).

Property and Equipment:

Property and equipment are recorded at cost if purchased or, if contributed, at fair market
value at the date of donation. If donors stipulate how long the assets must be used, the
contributions are recorded as restricted support. In the absence of such stipulations,
contributions of property and equipment are recorded as unrestricted support.

Depreciation 1s computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of
the assets of 5 to 39 years.

The Ministry’s policy is to capitalize property and equipment acquisitions and
tmprovements that either increase the value of an asset or increase the estimated useful life
of an asset.

Use of Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and labilities at the
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during
the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Donated Materials, Facilities and Services:

Donated materials and facilities are recorded as contributions and as property and
equipment or expense in the period received at fair value. SFAS 116 requires unconditional
promiscs to give materials and facilities to be recorded as contributions even though the
Ministry may not receive the assets or benefits until a future period.




HELPING HANDS OUTREACH MINISTRIES, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2016

NOTE 1. NATURE OF ORGANIZATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Shelter Furnishings:

Furnishings for the shelter operated by the Ministry consist primarily of donated furniture
and fixtures. No amounts for donated shelter furnishings have been reflected on the
statement of financial position. as the Ministry does not deem such amounts to be materially
sufficient to warrant capitalization. Purchased shelter furnishings are generally expensed in
the year of purchase.

Functional Expenses:

The costs of providing the various programs and othe( activities have been summarized on a
functional basis in the statement of activities. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated
among the programs and supporting services benefited.

Accounts Receivable:

Accounts recelvable do not include an allowance for doubtful accounts since the Ministry
believes all amounts to be collectible.

NOTE 2. IN-KIND DONATIONS

A substantial number of volunteers have donated significant amounts of time to the Ministry’s
programs and support services. However, no amounts have been reflected in the statement of
activities for contributed services as no objective basis is available to measure the value of such
services. Contributed services include services in such areas as counseling, distribution of food,
clothing and household goods, computer programming and maintenance, management, accounting
and finance, legal and professional, fundraising and administrative support.

In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, no amounts are reflected in the
statements of operations for donated goods that are received by the Ministry and redistributed to the
ultimate beneficiaries. Donated services of $1,225 have been reflected in the financial statements,
relating to professional fees valued at $3.725 for which the Ministry was billed $2,500.

NOTE 3. RESTRICTIONS ON NET ASSETS

As of June 30, 2016, there were no temporarily restricted net assets.




HELPING HANDS OUTREACH MINISTRIES, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 39, 2016

NOTE 4. NOTE PAYABLE AND LLONG-TERM DEBT

Details of the Ministry’s note payable and long-term debt are as follows:

Current note payable:
Demand note payable, bank, with interest at 6.8%.
collateralized by real estate $ 39.864

Long-term debt:
Note payable, bank, with interest at 7.5%, due in monthly
Installments of $1,194 through June 2029, collateralized
by real estate 5 110,664
Note payable, bank, with interest at 6.7%, due in monthly
installments of $3,042 through September 2027, collat-
eralized by real estate, interest only through September
30. 2014 291,419
Note payable, other financing entity, with interest at 0%.
due in annual installments of $14.985 through October
2027 224,828
626,911
Less: current maturities (37.463)
Long-term debt $ 589448

The Ministry has a linc of credit arrangement with TD Banknorth (Manchester, NH) in the amount
of $50,000. At June 30, 2016, borrowings against this line amounted to $39,864. At June 30, 2016,
the Ministry was substantially in compliance with the terms and conditions with its debt covenants
with respect to the line of credit.

The Ministry was in technical default on certain long-term borrowings. As of June 30, 2016, the
Ministry has successfilly refinanced these obligations.
Future maturities of long-term debt are as follows:

Year ending June 30:

2017 $ 37,463
2018 39,061
2019 40,775
2020 42612
2021 44,581
Thereafter 422 419

$626911




HELPING HANDS OUTREACH MINISTRIES, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
June 30, 2016

NOTE 5. SUPPORT FROM GRANTS AND AWARDS

Unconditional grants and awards consist of promises received during the year ended June 30, 2016:

Temporarily restricted:

State of New Hampshire — Grant-In-Aid $ 60.000
Federal Emergency Management Agency grant 4.517
Total Unrestricted § 64517

Temporarily restricted:
U.S Department of Housing and Urban Development —
Operating grant S 27300

NOTE 6. ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY

The Ministry receives a substantial portion of its support from federal and state government entities.

A significant reduction in the level of this support, if it were to occur, might have an effect on the
Ministry’s ability to deliver its programs and conduct its activities.

NOTE 7. CONTINGENCIES

The facility from which the Ministry operates is not in technical compliance with the Federal Code
Requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA). Management has estimated that a
cost of $65,000 would be required to bring the facility up to code standards. The Ministry’s ability
to receive future grant awards could be negatively impacted should the Ministry’s facility not be
brought into compliance with the ADA in the near future.

The Ministry has adopted FASB Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainties in Income
Taxes (FASB ASC 740). Accordingly, management has evaluated the Ministry’s tax positions and
has concluded that the Ministry has maintained its tax-exempt status, does not have any significant
unrelated business taxable income and has taken no uncertain tax positions that require adjustment
or disclosure in the financial statements at June 30, 2015.

The Ministry files Form 990. With few exceptions, the Ministry is no longer subject to U.S. federal
tax examinations for ycars prior to 2012.

NOTE 8. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Ministry has evaluated subsequent events through August 19, 2016, the date which the
financial statements were available 10 be issued, and has not evaluated subsequent events after that
date. No subsequent events were identified that would require disclosure in the financial statements
for the period ended June 30, 2016.

-10 -




HELPING HANDS OUTREACH CENTER

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
2017
Richard D. Doyle, Executive Director Spouse, _

rich@hh-oc.org (10/2013)

Heliini Hands Outreach Center 623-8778 iw)

Mr. Charles Therrien, Board Chair
AFLAC Insurance Agent

Charlesiietrainsurance.info i2008i

Craig Donais, Esq., Secretary
Civil Lawyer

craii.donaisidonaislaw.com _ W)

Cameron Ford _ ©

CEO Iron Heart- Veterans non-profit

fordcamﬁhotmail.com

Diane Paradis
Secretary
Eastern Bank- Branch Manager

D.Paradislieasternbank.com

Judi Farr
Judi@buyNHHOUSE.com
Keller Williams Reality- Independent Broker

Mr. Geoffrey Kacoyanis, Esq. Spouse, -

ieoff.kacoianisiibostocklaw.com (2008)



Richard Doyle

L .
O
R
RN
L}
Education

Springfield College (09/ 2011- 06/01/14)

500 Commercial Street

Manchester, NH 03102

Human Services- Bachelor’s

Phi Gamma Mu Honor Society Inductee (September 2012) GPA: 4.0
Graduation: December 2013 (Summa Cum Laude)

Manchester Community College (1/2009-5/2011)
Manchester, NH 03102
Liberal Arts- Human Services Certificate (GPA: 3.74)

Phi Theta Kappa (Inducted 2010)
Graduation Date: May 25, 2011

Middlesex Community College (1/93- 5/93)
591 Springs Road

Bedford, Massachusetts 01730
Undeclared- Illustration (GPA: 3.8)

{mplement and maintain program directives and
best practices suggested by SAMSHA. (5+ Yrs.)
MS Word, Excel, & Access database advanced
proficiency. (18+ Yrs.)

HMIS database maintenance (98% accuracy and
completeness).

HUD Federal implementation and annual
reporting proficiency.

HUD goals generation, target implementation,
analysis, and program evaluations.

Peripheral services & programming needs
required for those who have an addiction &
mental impairments.

Experience
Helping Hands Outreach Ministries, Inc. (12/2006- Current)

50 Lowell Street

Manchester, NH 03101

603-623-8778

Supervisor- Charles Therrien- Board Chair

Executive Director (10/15/13- Current)

Recruit, manage, & retain volunteer staffing for
house functionality (10-25 Volunteers).
Individual job and life skills coaching.

Facility operations and improvements
implementation for program growth and self-
sufficiency.

ISP creation, execution, and annual reyiew.
FBA & ABA behavioral techniques.

lntegral knowledge of 12-step programs (AA &
NA).

Inventory control/ inventory (8+ Yrs.).
S.0.A.R. SSDI/SSI Application assistance

* Al functions Inclusive in Job Title including Grant application, management and execution.
huring of all compensated employees and volunteer staff.

References Available Upon Request
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* Execution of all local, state and federal requirements including reporting, filing, CoC
participation.

Program Director- Gendron House (01/2608- 10/14/13)

*  Success rates over 80% and maintains participation of participants between nine months to two
years while in program.

e Effective program implementation, inception, and facility management.

*  Recruit, coach, and retain volunteer staffing pool of three to six persons for house functionality
including management, maintenance, and cooking duties.

* HMIS data lead for Helping Hands organization including accurate and time sensitive data entry,
compiled statistical reports, and combined analytical reports for state and federal review and
funding.

¢ HUD Quarterly and yearly statistical and analytical reporting for state and federal reports.

* Participant interventions involving rehabilitation, counseling, and quality of life improvements.

HUD Facilitator- Helping Hands Safe Haven (02/2008- 10/14/13)
* Maintain 95%+ participation within program guidelines
* Yearly APR consolidation, analysis, and reporting for HUD grantee required by state and federal
government.
* Maintained and retained funding source for program perpetuation.
*  Assist individuals with skills building, financial budgeting, and other life skills to increase self-
sufficiency.

Residential Cook Yolunteer (12/2006-03/2008)
e Maintained house kitchen and attained consistent 97-99 grade ratings for kitchen during city
mnspections.
* Provide nightly meals for house participants ranging from 12 to 28 persons daily.
* Daily ordering, rotation, and accurate, effective inspection of house stock and supplies.

Salvation Army (09/2011- 05/06/2016)
McKenna House

100 North Fruit Street

Concord, NH 03301

Phone (603) 228-3505

Supervisor: Lorrie Dale (Executive Director)

Case Manager (09/2012- 10/20/12)
House Supervisor (09/2011- 05/06/16)

Easter Seals (09/09-1/10)
555 Auburn Street
Manchester, NH 03103
603-621-3438

Supervisor- Jason Beauchesne/Christy Nault

Alzheimer’s Program Intern
* Provided effective and constructive direct services to those who have been diagnosed with
Alzheimer’s disease and/or severe cognitive impairments.

Peer Support (09/2006-11/2006)
Easter Seals: Farnum Center

235 Hanover Street

Manchester, NH 03104

(603) 622-3020

References Available Upon Request
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GUY L. TORGERSEN

Associates Degree in Addiction Counseling Candidate
L

L
Phone# Email : go—
Linked In Profile Bl S A —

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Helping Hands Qutreach Ministries June 2016-Present
Case Manager/CRSW
Provide complete and holistic casc management services for 28 men in ihe Helping Hands Transitional Shelier and 16 men in
fong term sober housing at the Gendron House in Manchester. New Hampshire.
* Responsible for intake biopsychosocial assessment, benefits and needs assessment, goal setting, treatment plamning,
and progress monitoring of residents.
¢  Bi-weekly meetings with residents to ensure they are following their recovery plans.
®  Advocaic, coordinate, and refer residents to third party a gengices including recovery services, social services, and faith
based services.
*  Implement life skill plans inclading trigger/craving management, anger management, lime management, money
management, stress management, resume writing, continuing education and job search skills.
e Coordinate and communicate with New Hampshire Department of Corrections case managers 10 help paroled inmates
have a safe and sober place to live when released.

Hope for New Hampshire Recovery Community Center October 2015-Present
Recovery Coach/CRSW

*  Responsible for peer recovery coaching and intakes for members of Hope for New Hampshire Recovery.

¢  Facilitate All Recovery and Smart Recovery meetings.

¢ Designed and implemented a new Home Comers curriculum for men and women released from prison.

¢ Lead facilitator for prison Home Comers group.

*  New Hampshire licensed Certified Recovery Support Worker June 2016.

¢ Counscled inbound substance abuse and recovery calls via State 211 service.

Christian Aftercare Ministries 2013-Present
Board of Directors
Non-Profit headquartered in Manchester responsible for assisting ex-offenders transition to the community providing housing,
Jjob placement, support and encouragement.

»  Assist ex inmates and hiomeless with accountability partner and encourage and support themn throughout their

substance use disorder recovery.
* Lecad a men’s bible study for those in transitional housing,.
* Elccted 10 Board of Directors in March 2013,

*  Facilitate and support fundraising for the annual dinner in October.

Family Promise of Rockingham County 2012-Present
Committee Member
Provides a safe place for homeless families with children to turn for food, shelter, education, and social services and get back on
their feet. .

*  Advocale for homeless families and providing for their needs through a social services and non-profit network.

»  Coordinate food and shelter for the families via the churches in our social network.




Guy L. Torgersen Phone: 603-809-9007
Linked In Profile
hitps://www linkedin.com/pub/guy-torgersen/0/419/846

New Hampshire State Prison ’ 2009-Present
Men’s Group Facilitator
¢ Lead a men’s group in New Hampshire State Men’s Prison. Provide encouragement and support.

ADDITIONAL PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Server Options Category Specialist. MarketStar Corporation. South Jordan, UT 2013-2015
Regional Sales Manager, C2G, Formerly Cables to Go, Moraine, OH 2007-2012
Regional Sales Manager, ViewSonic Corporation. Watnut. CA 2003-2007
Retai} Account Manager, Creative Lab, Milpitas, CA 2003-2003
National Account Manager, lomega Corporation. Roy, UT 1997-2003
Account Manager, US Robatics/3Com, Skokie, IL 1992-1997
Regional Sales Manager, PowerCore, Manteno, IL 1989-1992
EDUCATION

NHT!, Concord’s Community College, Associate Degree in Addiction Counseling Expected 2018
Master of Business Administration in Finance, DePaul University, Chicago, 1L 1985
Bachelor of Science in Management, DePanl University, Chicago, IL 1981

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Certified Recovery Support Worker-State of New Hampshire-June 2016

HIV Trends and Treatment-New Hampshire Training Institute on Addictive Disorders-F ebruary 2016

Substance Abuse Counseling Skills and Core Functions-New Hampshire Training Inst. on Addictive Disorders-February 2016
Menia} Health First Aid USA-National Council for Community Behavioral Health-February 2016

Smart Recovery Facilitator Training-Certification January 14. 2016

Recovery Community Messaging Training by Beyond Influence and Hope for New Hampshire Recovery-Sepiember 2015

COMPUTER SKILLS
Excel, PowerPoint, Microsoft Word




KRIS KALISCZUK
el

SKILLS PROFILE

» Painting

+ Cooking

» Customer service
* Management

- I'worked at Helping Hands (an outreach center) in Manchester New Hampshire which gave me
the chance to help myself and others people stay dean and sober. — 2011 to 2015

Communication Skills - T have developed, from my past experience and training, a tendency of using
highly effective customer relationship skills. Interact well with all levels of management / coworkers —

communicate by phone, email and in-person. Experience presenting complex information to large groups.

Computer Skills - Proficient with PC and MAC and the full Microsoft Office Suite. Have worked with
many different operating system programs when related to a business’ inventory database, Have created
software programs for the manipulation of databases, produced many Excel spreadsheets, and have
expasure to severat online programs such as QuickBooks, WebFEx, GoToMeeting and Optimal Resume.
Have htmi and web design experience. Have certificated training in medical billing and coding.

ACADEMIC BACKGROUND
Galenious Poland
1969 - 1973
High school
GENERAL EXPERIENCE

Helping Hands Outreach Center 2011 to 201
House Manager
Manchester, NH

Caprioli Painting 2006 to 2008
Supervisor
Manchester, NH

King Painting Inc. 1998 to August 2006
Project Manager
Manchester, NH
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CONTRACTOR NAME

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from | Amount Paid from
this Contract | this Contract

Richard Doyle Executive Director 50,000 6% 3,000

Guy Torgersen Case Manager 34,594 20% 7,020

Krys Kalaczcsuk House Manager 12,480 12% 1,495




STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
OFFICE OF HUMAN SERVICES
BUREAU OF HOMELESS AND HOUSING SERVICES

Jeffrey A. Meyers

Commissioner 129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3857
603-271-9196  1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9196
Maureen U. Ryan FAX: 603-271-5139 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

Director of Human
Services

May 17, 2017

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Bureau of Homeless
and Housing Services to amend agreements with the vendors listed below for the State
Grant-in-Aid Funds program by increasing the price limitation by $2,925,420 from
$6,015,381 to $8,940,801 and by extending the completion date from June 30, 2017 to
June 30, 2018, effective July 1, 2017 or upon Governor and Executive Council approval,
whichever is later. The original agreements were approved by Governor and Executive
Council on August 26, 2016 (Item #12), October 7, 2015 (item #9), and December 16,
2015 (item #14). The Front Door Agency was amended (Amendment #1) on June 1,
2016 (Item #11). Helping Hands Outreach Center was amended (Amendment #1) on
September 21, 2016 (Item #21A). These contracts are 100% General Funds.

Vendor Vendor Vendor Address
Number

Community Action

. 642 Central Avenue
Partnership of Strafford 177200-B004 | o NH 03821-1060
County

. 238 North Main Street,

Concord Coalition to End 267140-B001 | PO Box 3933,
Homelessness

Concord NH 03302

600 Lafayette Road
Portsmouth NH 03801

122 Market Street
Manchester NH 03101

Family Promise of Greater 180 Lowell Road
Nashua/ Anne Marie House | 129372-B001 | 1 ison NH 03051

Cross Roads House, Inc. 166570-B001

Families in Transition 157730-B001




His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu

and the Honorable Council
Page 2 of 5

Harbor Homes, Inc.

155358-B001

45 High Street
Nashua NH 03060

Headrest, Inc.

175226-R001

14 Church Street
Lebanon NH 03766

Helping Hands Outreach

174226-R001

50 Lowell Street

Assistance Program

157934-B001

Center Manchester NH 03103
Laconia Area Community 658 Union Avenue
Land Trust 15671-B001 Laconia NH 03246

o 87 Palm Street
Marguerite’s Place, Inc. 157465-B001 Nashua NH 03060
Merrimack Valley 8 Wall Street

Concord NH 03301

My Friend's Place

156274-B001

368 Washington Street
Dover NH 03820

Nashua Soup Kitchen &
Shelter, Inc.

174173-R001

42 Chestnut Street
Nashua NH 03061

New Horizons for NH

175227-R001

199 Manchester Street
Manchester NH 03103

New Hampshire Coalition
Against Domestic and
Sexual Violence

155510-B001

PO Box 353
Concord NH 03302

New Hampshire Legal
Assistance

154648-B001

117 North State Street
Concord NH 03301

Southern New Hampshire

40 Pine Street

Services, Inc.

Services. Ine 177198-B006 | PO Box 5040
T Manchester NH 03108
. 63 Community Way
Southwestern Community 177511-P001 | PO Box 603

Keene NH 03431-0603

The Bridge House Shelter

165288-B001

260 Highland Street
Plymouth NH 03264

The Friends Program, Inc.

154987-B001

202 North State Street
Concord NH 03301

The Front Door Agency,
inc.

156244-B001

7 Concord Street
Nashua NH 03064

The Salvation Army Carey
House Homeless Shelter

177627-B001

177 Union Street
PO Box 326
Laconia NH 03246
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The Salvation Army
McKenna House

58 Clinton Street
Concord NH 03301

214 Spruce Street
Manchester NH 03103

Tri-County Community 177195 30 Exchange Street
Action Program, Inc. Berlin NH 03570

177627-B003

The Way Home, Inc. 166673-B001

Funding is anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2018 upon the
availability and continued appropriation of funds, with the ability to adjust encumbrances
between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office, without further approval of the
Governor and Executive Council, if needed and justified.

SEE FISCAL DETAILS ATTACHED

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to amend the agreements for the provision of
intervention services and/or emergency shelter and related services, including essential
services, to homeless individuals by increasing the price limitation and extending the
completion date.

The State Grant-in-Aid (SGIA) Funds program provides funding support for the
following services:

Emergency Shelter - Any facility, the primary purpose of which is to provide
temporary shelter for homeless individuals or families. A non-permanent shelter, which
is crisis-oriented and designed to meet the basic needs of homeless clients. Allowable
activities include: Essential Services, such as assistance in finding permanent housing,
employment counseling, substance abuse counseling, assistance in accessing other
community services; staff salaries and benefits; and shelter operational costs such as
administration, rent, utilities, insurance, and supplies.

Transitional Shelter - A time-limited independent housing residence, designed
to provide a person or family, safe semi-private housing and comprehensive supportive
services. Case management, educational or rehabilitative programs and referrals help
to strengthen resiliency, enhance life skills and financial independence, and prepare for
a successful transition to permanent housing. Allowable activities include: Essential
Services, such as assistance in finding permanent housing, employment counseling,
substance abuse counseling, assistance in accessing other community services; staff
salaries and benefits; and transitional shelter operational costs such as administration,
rent, utilities, insurance, and supplies.

Specialty Sheiter - An emergency shelter designed solely to serve the
specialized needs of an identifiable subgroup of homeless individuals. Allowable
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activities include: Essential Services, such as assistance in finding permanent housing,
employment counseling, substance abuse counseling, assistance in accessing other
community services; staff salaries and benefits; and specialty shelter operational costs
such as administration, rent, utilities, insurance, and supplies.

Intervention Services — Non-shelter services that assist persons who are
homeless, or at imminent risk of homelessness through case management, assisted
referrals, or other targeted services intended to assist persons experiencing
homelessness obtain or maintain shelter. Examples of intervention activities include (but
are not limited to) information and referrals to assist clients in exiting homelessness,
assessing a client’s eligibility for shelter/housing placement, legal services, HMIS, and
drop-in centers or other facilities where clients have access to case managers as well
as telephone/internet access for education, housing, employment purposes.

The original contracts were competitively bid. The Department of Health of
Human Services received a total of thirty-eight (38) applications from twenty-eight (28)
agencies for State Grant-in-Aid Funding Program in response to a Request for
Applications that was posted to the Departments website from December 5, 2014
through February 13, 2015. After review of the applicants by a team of qualified
personnel from the Bureau of Homeless and Housing, twenty-seven (27) agencies were
chosen. Priority was given to vendors that provide Emergency, Specialty and
Transitional Shelter services. Two (2) of these agencies, Child and Family Services,
and Community Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack, are entering into unrelated sole
source amendments due to increase in scope and are not included in this request.

The Department is satisfied with the services provided by the vendors. The
attached amendment calls for the renewal of the provision of these services for one (1)
year. The original agreement reserved the Department’s right to renew the agreements
for up to two (2) additional years, based upon satisfactory delivery of services, and
continued availability of funds and Governor and Executive Council approval, leaving (1)
year of renewal. The Department intends to issue a Request for Proposals for these
services prior to the expiration of these amendments.

As stated in the amendment, notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract
to the contrary, no services shall continue after June 30, 2017, and the Department
shall not be liable for any payments for services provided after June 30, 2017, unless
and until an appropriation for these services has been received from the state
legislature and funds encumbered for the SFY 2018-2019 biennia.

Should Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, individuals
and families who are without housing and resources may resort to seeking local shelter
in places that are not fit for people to live in, or will attempt to travel to shelters in other
communities. This will increase the likelihood that homeless people will be in danger of
injury or death, and will be cut off from basic supports for health, education, and
treatment.
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Area Served: Statewide
Source of Funds: 100% General Funds

Respectfully submitted,

“Iy

i '/“ /'
Mabfreen U. Ryan
Director of Human Services

Approved by: WO//&Q'\

Jeffrey A. Meyers
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and families in providing opportunities
for citizens to achieve health and independence



State Grant-in-Aid (SGIA) Funds
Fiscal Details

05-95-42-423010-7928 (REPLACED BY 05-95-42-423010-7927 ON JULY 1, 2017) HEALTH
AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS:HUMAN

SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING- SHELTER PROGRAM

Community Action Partnership of Strafford County (Vendor #177200-B004)

ey [cmsonea| e | PG | Somt | e T
2016 | 102-500731 Prgg"r'a“;"g:;?;es 42307020 | $35,975 $0 $35,975
2017 | 102500731 Prfg"r’;‘r;ag;ﬁ;es 42307020 | $35,975 $0 $35,975
2018 | 102-500731 Prgg(:gtr:\ag:ri?ées 42307020 | S0 $35975 | $35975
Sub-total | $71,950 | $35975 | $107,925
Concord Coalition to End Homelessness (Vendor # 267140 B001)
orv [cmonoa | Tue | A | Lo | o | Wadhea
2016 | 102-500731 Pr;"r’a“r:‘a‘é‘:;?;es 42307020 | $40,000 $0 $40,000
2017 | 102-500731 Prfg"rg‘r:‘ag:ri‘i’ées 42307020 | $40,000 $0 $40,000
2018 | 102-500731 Pr‘%"fg‘r;ag;i?c’ o | 42307020 30 $40,000 | $40,000
Sub-total | $80,000 $40,000 | $120,000
Cross Roads House, Inc. (Vendor# 166570-B001)
o oo | e | P | S | s, e
2016 | 102-500731 Prgg‘:ggwag:;‘i’;es 42307020 | $178,595 $0 $178,595
2017 | 102500731 | o, rgg"rgt:g: r?'; os | 42307020 | $178,595 $0 $178,595
2018 | 102-500731 Prfg‘:::qag;\fzées 42307020 $0 $178,595 | $178,595
Sub-total | $357,190 | $178,595 | $535,785
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State Grant-In-Aid (SGIA) Funds

Families in Transition (Vendor #157730-B001)

Fiscal Details

v oo | Tae | AGy | ot | Bl | W
2016 | 102500731 | p, SONUECS IO | 42307020 | $301,392 $0 $301,392
2017 | 102-500731 Prgg"f’;‘;fg:{i‘i’;es 42307020 | $301,392 $0 $301,392
2018 | 102500731 | rgg‘:;:‘ag:ri‘i’ées 42307020 | $0 $301,392 | $301,392
Sub-total | $602,764 | $301,392 | $904,176
Family Promise of Greater Nashua/ Anne Marie House (Vendor #159372-B001)
srv [owmmonet | e | Aeiy | Gt | e | Hoded
2016 | 102-500731 |  SoNTaIS 1O | 42307020 | 522,428 $0 $22,428
2017 | 102500731 | p, rgg"rg:fg;i‘i’ées 42307020 | $22,428 $0 $22,428
2018 | 102-500731 Prfg"r’;'r:‘ag‘;\',‘i’ées 42307020 | $0 $22,428 | $22,428
Sub-total | $44,856 | $22,428 | $67,264
Harbor Homes, Inc. (Vendor # 155358-B001)
Py oo | Tun | Ao | ot | T [ i
2016 | 102:500731 Prggﬁgfg:;‘?;es 42307020 | $39,050 $0 $39,050
2017 | 102500731 Prgg‘:g‘r;acsz‘rf"i’ées 42307020 | $39,050 $0 $39,050
2018 | 102500731 |, SOTMASSIO | 42307020 {80 $39,050 | $39,050
Sub-total | $78,100 | $39,050 | $117,150
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State Grant-In-Aid (SGIA) Funds

Fiscal Details
Headrest inc. (Vendor# 175226 - R001)
v st | e | P | gt | el | Wit
2016 | 102-500731 Prgg‘:gtr:‘ag:ri‘i’;es 42307020 | $50,879 $0 $50,879
2017 | 102-500731 Prgg‘:’;fg;i‘i’ées 42307020 | $50,879 $0 $50,879
2018 | 102500731 Procg"rg""‘;’g;i‘i’ées 42307020 | $0 $50,879 | $50,879
Sub-total | $101,758 | $50,879 | $152,637
Helping Hands Outreach Center (Vendor# 174226 - R001)
S [cummonmn| e | S | S |
2016 | 102-500731 Pro‘;"r’;&ag;&i’ées 42307020 | $60,000 $0 $60,000
2017 | 102500731 Pro‘;"r’;‘r:]ag:rf,‘i’c'es 42307020 | $60,000 $0 $60,000
2018 | 102-500731 Prgg‘:g‘r:‘agjr:,‘i’ées 42307020 | $0 $60,000 | $60,000
Sub-total | $120,000 | $60,000 | $180,000
Laconia Area Community Land Trust (Vendor# 156571 - B001)
orv [cmmmonper | e | Ay | ot | [ o
2016 | 102500731 | o, SOMACS 1of | 42307020 | $42,500 $0 $42,500
2017 | 102-500731 Prgg"rgtr;ag;i‘i’ées 42307020 | $42,500 $0 $42,500
2018 | 102-500731 Prgg‘:g‘r;‘ag:;‘i’ées 42307020 | $0 $42,500 | $42.500
Sub-total | $85,000 $42,500 $127,500
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State Grant-In-Aid (SGIA) Funds
Fiscal Details

Marguerite's Place, Inc. (Vendor# 157465-B001)

o [ | e[ A | S| e T
2016 | 102-500731 Prf;’;:‘ag:;‘i’ées 42307020 | $30,000 $0 $30,000
2017 | 102-500731 Prfg‘;;?‘g;ﬁc'es 42307020 | $30,000 $0 $30,000
2018 | 102-500731 Prg’r’a‘;ag:rﬁi’ées 42307020 | %0 $30,000 | $30.000
Sub-total | $60,000 | $30,000 | $90,000
Merrimack Valley Assistance Program (Vendor# 157934 - B001)
v oo | Tae | A | Cor | T [
2016 | 102-500731 | p, SoNTACS O | 42307020 | $50,850 $0 $50,850
2017 | 102:500731 | p, =00BES O | 42307020 | $50,850 $0 $50,850
2018 | 102-500731 | , Sonteqe o | 42307020 | s $50,850 | $50,850
Sub-total | $101,700 | $50,850 | $152,550
My Friend's Place (Vendor# 156274 - B001)
v [omuotien| e | Agy | Lo | e [ vodte
2016 | 102-500731 Prfg‘:;ﬁg;i?ges 42307020 | $95912 $0 $95,912
2017 | 102-500731 Prfgﬁ;‘;‘ag:ri‘?ées 42307020 | $95912 $0 $95,912
2018 | 102:500731 | , SOnECe O | 42307020 | 80 $95912 | $95,912
Sub-total | $191,824 | $95912 | $287,736
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State Grant-In-Aid (SGIA) Funds

Fiscal Details

Nashua Soup Kitchen & Shelter, Inc (Vendor# 174173-R001)

Sy [cummomea | me | A | Corent | Dot T o
2016 | 102-500731 Prgg‘:;‘r;ag:ri‘i’ées 42307020 | $115,599 $0 $115,599
2017 | 102-500731 Prgg‘:::;ag:ri‘i’c'es 42307020 | $115599 | %0 | $115599
2018 | 102-500731 Prg;‘:’;gfg‘: for | 42307020 | 50 $115,599 | $115,509
Sub-total | $231,196 | $175,599 | $346,797
New Horizons for NH (Vendor# 175227-R001)
vy [omwomea| e | Agi | Corent | Poremer [ Wt
2016 | 102500731 Prg;"f’;‘r;ag‘:;‘i’ges 42307020 | $203,086 $0 $203,086
2017 | 102-500731 Prgg‘:::;ag:nffi’ées 42307020 | $203,086 $0 $203,086
2018 | 102-500731 Pr(():gcl":tr:\ag:rsi);es 42307020 | $0 $203,086 | $203,086
Sub-total | $406,172 | $203,086 | $609,258

New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence (Vendor# 155510 - B001)

v [cmmonea|  Tue | AL | o | Bl [ Mo
2016 | 102-500731 Prgg?':::\ag:rz?ées 42307020 | $277,373 $0 $277,373
2017 | 102-500731 Pm(;"rgtr;ag:ri‘i’c’es 42307020 | $277,373 $0 $277,373
2018 | 102-500731 Prgg‘:’;tr;ag:nffi’ges 42307020 | $0 $277,373 | $277,373

Sub-total | $554,746 | $277,373 | $832,119
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State Grant-In-Aid (SGIA) Funds

Fiscal Details

New Hampshire Legal Assistance (Vendor# 154648 - B001)

Py oo | e | AR | SR | werr | s
2016 | 102-500731 Prgg‘:’;&ag:;‘?ées 42307020 | $50,000 $0 $50,000
2017 | 102500731 Prgg"fgﬁg:rf"i’c'es 42307020 | $50,000 $0 $50,000
2017 | 102-500731 Prgg‘:';&ag:rf,‘i’ées 42307020 | $0 $50,000 | $50,000

Sub-total | $100,000 | $50,000 | $150,000

Southermn New Hampshire Services, Inc. (Vendor # 177198-B006)

Sy [Cssoiot| e | gy | Corert | et | odted
2016 | 102-500731 Pr§g°r;gfg:rffi’;es 42307020 | $78,894 $0 $78,894
2017 | 102:500731 | p SOMTASS O | 42307020 | $78,893 $0 $78.893
2018 | 102-500731 prgg‘:gg‘ag:rf,‘i’ées 42307020 $0 $78,804 | $78,894

Sub-total | $157,787 | $78,694 | $236,681

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. (Vendor # 177511-P001)

o [omsonea| e | A | Gl | B[ o
2016 | 102-500731 Prcs;gc:gaag:rf/?ées 42307020 | $313,902 $0 $313,902
2017 | 102500731 | p, SOnTAS O | 42307020 | $313,902 | $0 | $313.902
2018 | 102500731 | p conaSStOf | 42307020 | 50 | $305902 | $305,902

Sub-total | $627,804 | $305902 | $933,706
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State Grant-in-Aid (SGIA) Funds

The Bridge House Shelter (Vendor # 165288-B001)

Fiscal Details

oo [cmsiomect | Tae | Ay | Sorent | e T Waded
2016 | 102-500731 Prgg‘;’;?g:;‘i’ées 42307020 | $140,000 $0 $140,000
2017 | 102-500731 Prg;ﬂg‘;fg:;‘i’c'es 42307020 | $140,000 $0 $140,000
2018 | 102-500731 Prc%ﬁgtr;acst:ri?ées 42307020 | S0 $140,000 | $140,000
Sub-total | $280,000 | $140,000 | $420,000
The Friends Program, Inc. (Vendor# 154987 - B001)
orv [cmomeet | e | G | ot | et [ Mo
2016 | 102-500731 Prgg"rgtr;ag:rffi’;es 42307020 | $208,727 $0 $208,727
2017 | 102-500731 Prc%‘:gtrfg:ri?ées 42307020 | $208727 | S0 | $208,727
2017 | 102500731 Prgrgtr:fg:;‘i’c'es 42307020 $0 $208,727 | $208,727
Sub-total | $417,454 | $208,727 | $626,181
The Front Door Agency, Inc. (Vendor # 156244-B001)
or [ | e | Ay | G | W T o
2016 | 102500731 Prgg"fg‘:g:;‘i’ées 42307020 | $82,500 $0 $82,500
2017 | 102:500731 | p “oamegs o | 42307020 | se2.500 $0 $82,500
2018 | 102-500731 Prgr;trfg:rﬁ;es 42307020 $0 $82,500 | $82,500
Sub-total | $165,000 | $82,500 | $247,500
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State Grant-In-Aid (SGIA) Funds
Fiscal Details

The Salvation Army Carey House Homeless Shelter (Vendor # 177627-B001)

orv [cumsoon| T | Ay | S | poremer | o
2016 | 102-500731 Prgg"r';"r:'g:rfl‘.:;es 42307020 | $64,083 $0 $64,083
2017 | 102500731 | , SOMECS IO | 42307020 | 64,083 $0 $64,083
2018 | 102500731 | , ~onees B | 42307020 | 80 $64,083 | $64,083
Sub-total | $128,166 | $64,083 | $192,249
The Salvation Army McKenna House (Vendor # 177627-B003)
Y [Clossoniect | Tie | Aug®’ | gorem | berese T s
2016 | 102-500731 Prgg‘:g‘r;ag: rfzc’e < | 42307020 | $101,191 $0 $101,191
2017 | 102-500731 Prgg‘:‘;‘r:‘a‘g;ffi’ges 42307020 | $101,191 $0 $101,191
2018 | 102-500731 Prgg‘;;‘r;a‘s";i‘i’ées 42307020 $0 $101,191 | $101,191
Sub-total | $202,382 | $101,191 | $303,573
The Way Home, Inc. (Vendor #166673-B001)
SFY | ClassiObject | Title *Code’ | Amount | (Decrease) | Amount
2016 | 102-500731 Prgg‘:';‘r;ag:;‘i’;es 42307020 | $187,330 $0 $187,330
2017 | 102-500731 Prc%c;:tr:\ag:r:/?ées 42307020 | $187,330 $0 $187,330
2018 | 102-500731 Prfg‘:;‘f;ag:;‘i’cres 42307020 $0 $187,330 | $187,330
Sub-total | $374,660 | $187,330 | $561,990
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State Grant-In-Aid (SGIA) Funds
Fiscal Details

Tri-County Community Action Program, inc. (Vendor #177195-B009)

srv [cmaomoc| T | A | G | e T Wi
2016 | 102-500731 Prgg"r’a"r:‘ag;z‘i’;es 42307020 | $163,154 $0 $163,154
2017 | 102-500731 Prc?g(:gtr:\ag:rs?ées 42307020 | $163,154 $0 $163,154
2018 | 102-500731 Prgg"r’:r;ag':rf/‘i’ées 42307020 $0 $163,154 | $163,154

Sub-total | $326,308 | $163,154 | $489,462

Helping Hands Outreach Center (Vendor# 174226 - R001)

05-95-49-491510-2990 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS
DEPT OF, HHS: DIV OF COMM BASED CARE SVC, BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL
SVCS, CLINICAL SERVICES

. . Current Increase/ Modified

SFY | Class/Object Title Amount (Decrease) Amount
2017 | 102-500734 | Contracts for Program Services $138,542 $0 $138,542
Sub-Total $138,542 $0 $138,542

The Front Door Agency, Inc. (Vendor # 156244-B001)

05-95-42-423010-7925 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVCS, HHS:HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOMELESS HOUSING ACCESS

FUND
. Activity Current Increase/ Modified
SFY | Class/Object Title Code Budget (Decrease) Amount
Contracts for
2017 | 102-500731 Program Services 423010 $10,000 $0 $10,000
Sub-total $10,000 $0 $10,000
Total $6,015,381 | $2,925,420 | $8,940,801
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
27 Hazen Dr., Concord, NH 03301
Fax: 603-271-1516 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964
www.nh.gov/doit

Denis Goulet
Commissioner

May 18,2017

Jeffrey A. Meyers, Commissioner
Department of Health and Human Services
State of New Hampshire

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

Dear Commissioner Meyers:
This letter represents formal notification that the Department of Information Technology (Dol T)

has approved your agency’s request to enter into a contract amendment with twenty-six (26) vendors
listed below and referenced as DoIT No. 2018-031A.

_ Ve'ndor . Vendor Number Vendor Address
Commaty Aon P o | oponne | S2Co e
Comord G OE | pagnr | 28 Yot S, 70095
Cross Roads House, Inc. 166570-B001 gg&s;g?;n;}l} %Z%OI
Families in Transition 157730-B001 | 122 MarketSteet
Fat ot oGt |y | vt
Harbor Homes, Inc. 155358-B001 ;Sa gfahﬁgeg; 060
Headrest, Inc. 175226-R001 i‘lbca};‘;f;%"g;; 6
Helping Hands Outreach Center 174226-R001 i;)ahg;:é thlerSt;IeI:tO?’ 103
I’l:::]:;)tnia Area Community Land 15671-B001 ?; <8;0Unril;c;~rll Ii\(\grzlzg
Marguerite’s Place, Inc. 157465-B001 gg;::‘ﬁg";;o 60
gigfrﬁck velley Rusisance 1579348001 | ol i NH 03301
My Friend’s Place 1562748001 [ 28 Washingion Street

"Innovative Technologies Today for New Hampshire's Tomorrow"




Denis Goulet
Commissioner

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

27 Hazen Dr., Concord, NH 03301

Fax: 603-271-1516 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964

www.nh.gov/doit

Nashua Soup Kitchen & Shelter, 42 Chestnut Street
Inc. 17AI3-R001 - . hua NH 03061

. 199 Manchester Street
New Horizons for NH 175227-R001 Manchester NH 03103
New Hampshire Coalition Against 155510-B001 PO Box 353
Domestic and Sexual Violence ) Concord NH 03302

. . 117 North State Street

New Hampshire Legal Assistance | 154648-B001 Concord NH 03301
Southern New Hampshire 40 Pine Street, PO Box 5040
Services, Inc. 177198-B006 Manchester NH 03108

Southwestern Community
Services, Inc.

177511-P001

63 Community Way, PO Box 603
Keene NH 03431-0603

. 260 Highland Street
The Bridge House Shelter 165288-B001 Plymouth NH 03264
. 202 North State Street
The Friends Program, Inc. 154987-B001 Concord NH 03301
7 Concord Street
The Front Door Agency, Inc. 156244-B001 Nashua NH 03064
The Salvation Army Carey House 177627-B001 177 Union Street, PO Box 326,
Homeless Shelter ) Laconia NH 03246
The Salvation Army McKenna 58 Clinton Street
House 177627-B003 Concord NH 03301
214 Spruce Street
The Way Home, Inc. 166673-B001 Manchester NH 03103
Tri-County Community Action 177195 30 Exchange Street
Program, Inc. Berlin NH 03570

The purpose of this request is to amend twenty-six (26) contract agreements to continue
services for homeless individuals. The State Grant-In-Aid Funds (SGIA) are used to
provide intervention services, emergency shelters, transitional shelters, and specialty
shelters to individuals who are homeless or at risk of homelessness.

The funding amount for this amendment is $2,925,420.00, increasing the current contract

from $6,015,381.00 to $8,940,801.00. The contract shall become effective upon
Governor and Council approval through June 30, 2018.

"Innovative Technologies Today for New Hampshire's Tomorrow"



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
27 Hazen Dr., Concord, NH 03301
Fax: 603-271-1516 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964
www.nh.gov/doit

Denis Goulet
Commissioner

A copy of this letter should accompany the Department of Health and Human Services’
submission to the Governor and Executive Council for approval.

I’ncerely

Denis Goulet

DG/kaf
DoIT #2018-031A

cc: Bruce Smith, IT Manager, DolT

"“Innovative Technologies Today for New Hampshire's Tomorrow”



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
State Grant-In-Aid (SGIA) Funds Program

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #2 to the
State Grant-In-Aid (SGIA) Funds Program

This 2™ Amendment to the State Grant-In-Aid (SGIA) Funds Program (hereinafter referred to as
“Amendment # 2°) dated this 21st day of March, 2017, is by and between the State of New Hampshire,
Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State” or "Department”) and
Helping Hands Outreach Ministries, Inc., (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor”), a non-profit
company with a place of business at 50 Lowell Street, Manchester, NH 03101.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on August 26, 2015 (ltem#12) and subsequently amended on September 21, 2016 (ltem#21A), the
Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the
Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the General Provisions, Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1, Paragraph 3, the State
may at its sole discretion, amend and renew the contract upon written agreement of the parties and
approval of the Govemor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement and increase the price limitation, to
support continued delivery of these services, and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree as follows:
1. Amend Form P-37, Block 1.6, to read 05-95-42-423010-7927-102-500731/ 05-95-42-423010-
7928-102-500731.
2. Amend Form P-37, Block 1.7, to read June 30, 2018.

3. Amend Form P-37, Block 1.8, to increase Price Limitation by $60,000 from $258,542 to read:
-$318,542.

4. Amend Form P-37, Block 1.9, to read Jonathan V. Gallo, Esq., Interim Director of Contracts and
Procurement.

5. Amend Form P-37, Block 1.10, to read 603-271-9246.

6. Add Exhibit A, Paragraph 1, Conditional Nature of Agreement, Subparagraph 1.8 toread as
follows:

1.8  Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no services shall
continue after June 30, 2017, and the Department shall not be liable for any payments for
services provided after June 30, 2017, unless and until an appropriation for these
services has been received from the state legislature and funds encumbered for the SFY
2018-2019 biennia.

7. Delete Exhibit B in its entirety and replace with Exhibit B - Amendment #2.

Helping Hands Outreach Ministries, Inc. Amendment #2 Confractor Initials;
P
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
State Grant-in-Aid (SGIA) Funds Program

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

AEN

Date '

W7
5

Date

State of New Hampshire
Department of Healith and Human Services

C Mo My or—

Namef Lcu.ugén Kyan

Title:

Helping Hands Outreach Ministries, Inc.

M(&*? _
T:.:"ee@a% ) %\55‘55‘”

Acknaowiedgement of Contractor's signature:
State of N tlampshee | County of_Hhllskbomugr  on (o l‘ ‘ \) , before the

undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified directly above, or satisfactorily proven to
be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the

capacity indicated above.

Toauam fua -

Signature of Notary Public or Justice-ofthe Peace-

Name and Title of Notary or Justice ot th& Péace

My Commission Expires:

OIANE M. PARADIS, Notary Public
Cormmismon Expires July 11, 2017

Helping Hands Qutreach Ministries, Inc.

16-DHHS-OHS-BHHS-02

Amendment #2 Contractor Initials: C&\

Page 2 of 3 Date:
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
State Grant-In-Aid (SGIA) Funds Program

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

o1 u/k/\/Y\

Date [ / Namyg:

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by overnor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:
Helping Hands Outreach Ministries, Inc. Amendment #2 Contractor initials: C‘/@
16-DHHS-OHS-BHHS-02 Page 3 of 3 Date:
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
State Grant-in—Aid (SGIA) Funds Program

Exhibit B — Amendment #2

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The following financial conditions apply to the scope of services as detailed in Exhibit A —
State Grant—in-Aid Funds Program.

2. This contract is funded 100% by the New Hampshire General Fund as follows:

2.1. Total Amount State Grant—in-Aid Funds Program;

SFY16 not to exceed $60,000.00
SFY17 not to exceed $60,000.00
SFY18 not to exceed $60,000.00

Safe Stations Program (SFY17 only)  not to exceed $138,542.00
July 1, 2015 — June 30, 2018:  not to exceed $318,542.00

2.2. Funds allocation under this agreement for State Grant—in-Aid Funds Program;

Specialty Shelter Services $180,000.00
Safe Stations Program $138,542.00
Total program amount $318,542.00

3. Subject to the availability of State general funds, General Provisions of this Agreement and
in consideration of the satisfactory completion of the services to be performed under this
Agreement, the State agrees to fund the Contractor for State Grant—in-Aid Funds Program,
in an amount not to exceed and for the time period specified above.

4. REPORTS

As part of the performance of the Project Activities, the Contractor covenants and agrees to
submit the following:

4.1. Audited Financial Report: The Audited Financial Report shall be prepared in
accordance with the regulations that implement 2 CFR Part 200. Three (3) copies of
the audited financial report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days of the completion of
said report to the State.

4.2. Where the Contractor is not subject to the requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, within
ninety (90) days after the Completion or Termination Date, one copy of an audited
financial report shall be submitted to the State. Said audit shall be conducted utilizing
the guidelines set forth in “Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations, Program
Activities, and Functions” by the Comptroiler General of the United States.

5. PROJECT COSTS: PAYMENT SCHEDULE; REVIEW BY THE STATE

5.1. Project Costs: As used in this Agreement, the term “Project Costs® shall mean all
expenses directly or indirectly incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the
Project Activities, as determined by the State to be eligible and allowable for payment in
accordance with Public Law 102-550 as well as allowable cost standards set forth in 2
CFR Part 200 as revised from time to time and with the rules, regulations, and
guidelines established by the State. Nonprofit subcontractors shall meet the
requirements of 2 CFR Part 200.

Helping Hands Qutreach Ministries, inc. Exhibit B — Amendment #2 Contractor Initials

State Grant-in-Aid Funds Program Page 1 of 2 Dat
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
State Grant-in-Aid (SGIA) Funds Program

Exhibit B - Amendment #2

5.2. Payment of Project Costs: Subject to the availability of State general funds, General
Provisions of this Agreement and in consideration of the satisfactory completion of the
services to be performed under this Agreement, the State agrees to fund the Contractor
for State Grant-in-Aid Funds Program in an amount not to exceed as specified above.
Reimbursement requests for all Project Costs shall be submitted on a monthly basis
and accompanied by an invoice from the Contractor for the amount of each requested
disbursement along with a payment request form as designated by the State, which
shall be completed and signed by the Contractor. The Contractor shall provide
additional financial information if requested by the State to verify expenses.

5.3. Review of the State Disallowance of Costs: At any time during the performance of the
Services, and upon receipt of the Annual Performance Report, Termination Report or
Audited Financial Report, the State may review all Project Costs incurred by the
Contractor and all payments made to date. Upon such review the State shall disallow
any items of expenses that are not determined to be allowable or are determined to be
in excess of actual expenditures, and shall, by written notice specifying the disallowed
expenditures, inform the Contractor of any such disallowance. If the State disallows
costs for which payment has not yet been made, it shall refuse to pay such costs. Any
amounts awarded to the Contractor pursuant to this agreement are subject to recapture.
The funds authorized to be expended under this Agreement shall be used only for The
State Grant-in-Aid Funds Program.

6. USE OF GRANT FUNDS

6.1. The State agrees to provide payment for actual costs, up to the not to exceed amount
for the State Grant-in-Aid Funds Program as specified in this Exhibit.

6.2. The Contractor may amend the contract budget through line item increases, decreases
or the creation of new line items provided these amendments do not exceed the
contract price. Such amendments shall only be made upon written request to and
written approval from the State.

6.3. Conformance to 2 CFR Part 200: Grant funds are to be used only in accordance with
procedures, requirements, and principles specified in 2 CFR Part 200.

7. CONTRACTOR FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

7.1. Fiscal Control: The Contractor shall establish fiscal control and fund accounting
procedures which assure proper disbursement of, and accounting for, grant funds and
any required nonfederal expenditures. This responsibility applies to funds disbursed in
direct operations of the Contractor.

7.2. The Contractor shall maintain a financial management system that complies with 2 CFR
Part 200 or such equivalent system as the State may require. Requests for payment
shall be made according to Exhibit B-Amendment #2, Section 5.2 of this Agreement.

Helping Hands Outreach Ministries, Inc. Exhibit B — Amendment #2 Contractor Initials ( @

-
State Grant-in-Aid Funds Program Page 2of 2 Date ﬁig__l ? @
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

Jeffrey A. Meyers

Commissioner 129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-9422 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9422
Katja S. Fox Fax: 603-271-8431 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dbhs.nh.gov
Director 2
| s T
September 7, 2016 ¥

Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

1)

2)

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Bureau of Homeless and Housing
Services, to enter into a sole source amendment to an existing agreement with Helping Hands

"Qutreach Ministries, Inc. 50 Lowell St, Manchester, NH, 03103 (Vendor #174226 B001),

P0O1045674 to amend the scope of work to include respite care services in support of the Safe
Stations program by increasing the price limitation by $138,542 from $120,000 to $258,542 with
no change to the contract completion date, effective upon Governor and Executive Council
approval through June 30, 2017. The original Contract was approved by Governor and Executive
Council on August 26, 2015 (Item #12), 100% General.

Contingent upon approval of Requested Action #1, authorize the Department of Health and
Human Services to make an advance payment of $25,000 to the Helping Hands Outreach
Ministries to be used for program start up and staff readiness activities effective upon Govemor
and Council approval.

Funds to support this request are available in State Fiscal Year 2017 in the following accounts,

with the authority to adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office if
needed and justified, without approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

05-95-42-423010-7928 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVCS, HHS:HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, EMERGENCY SHELTERS

State Revised
Fiscal Class/Object Title Amount Increase/ Modified
Year Decrease Budget
Contracts for
2016 102-500731 Program Services $60,000.00 $0 $60,000.00
Contracts for
2017 102-500731 Program Services $60,000.00 $0 $60,000.00
Sub-Total $120,000.00 $0 $120,000.00
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05-95-49-491510-2990 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF,
HHS: DIV OF COMM BASED CARE SVC, BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SVCS, CLINICAL
SERVICES

Revised
State Fiscal Increase/ Modified
Year Class/Account Title Amount Decrease Budget
Contracts for
2016 102-500734 | Program Services $0 $0 $0
Contracts for
2017 102-500734 | Program Services $0] $138,542 $138,542
Sub-Total $0| $138,542 $138,542
Contract Total 120,000.00 | 138,542.00 258,542.00
EXPLANATION

This request is sole source because the increase in price limitation is greater than 10% of the
original contract value.

This purpose of this amendment is to have the Vendor provide overnight respite care services
for the Safe Stations program in Manchester.

Safe Stations is a Manchester based program that is designed to be an access point whereby
the ten fire houses throughout the city serve as a designated safe environment for individuals seeking
assistance with their substance use disorder. Anyone can walk into a fire station, be medically cleared
and then be connected with a service provider within 24 hours to begin their treatment and recovery. A
key component of the Safe Stations program has been overnight respite care for individuals in the
program who would not otherwise have a safe place to sieep while they are waiting for placement in
treatment.

Since August, the Safe Stations program has served 361 unique individuals from all over the
state of New Hampshire, ranging in ages from 18-69. The Safe Stations model provides for access to a
licensed professional through a local treatment provider, who then works collaboratively alongside the
respite program to serve the client. Between the hours of 9:00am-3:00pm, Safe Stations clients are
served by licensed professionals through the Serenity Place WRAP program. The Serenity Place
WRAP program, funded in part through the Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services, provides a safe place
for Safe Stations clients to be during the day with access to interim level services. The respite center
provided by the Vendor will serve as a place where Safe Stations clients can stay overnight for a short
period of time while they await placement in an appropriate level of care at a treatment facility or are
able to access a safe housing alternative.

The initial contract for the Vendor is through the Bureau of Homeless and Housing Services and
is for transitional, emergency, specialty sheiter care, and intervention services for homeless individuals.
The contract is being amended to allow for funding of an additional 16 beds specifically to support
clients of the Safe Stations program in Manchester.

Funding under this amendment will be used to provide staff for 16 beds, care for the basic
needs of Safe Stations clients during the hours of 3:00pm-9:00am, and accommodate the additional
cost of utilities required for 24 hours, 7 days per week, and 365 days of the year of operations of the
facility. Funding for this program will also enable the Vendor to work collaboratively with community
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service providers, like Serenity Place, to ensure seamless transitions to care for assessment and
treatment. The Vendor is uniquely qualified to work with the Safe Stations model given their existing
scope of services which specializes in providing sober living environments through provision of shelter,
food, case management, volunteer opportunities, and job training, while providing peer supports and a
positive structure for those within the programs.

These services fit into the Department’s overall strategy for the treatment of substance use
disorders by ensuring individuals have access to services the moment they are ready to engage in
recovery. Safe and supportive housing is a critical component of the continuum of care that is
supported by the Department. Expanding access to a safe place during a crisis period will increase the
chances of these individuals entering treatment and achieving recovery; thereby increasing the client’s
health and well-being and reducing the medical, legal, social, and other costs to the community and
state associated with on-going substance misuse.

Should the Governor and Executive Council determine to not authorize this Request, individuals
seeking services through Safe Stations who do not have safe overnight accommodations fikely wouid
remain in unsafe environments associated with an increased risk of substance misuse, overdose,

~and/or other physical harm.

Area served: Manchester.
Source of Funds100% GENERAL FUNDS
Respectiully submitted,

—

T~ 3 t—<

Katja S. Fox

Approved by:

Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



Respite Care Services in support of Safe Stations program

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment 1 to the State Grant in Ald Contract
This first Amendment to the State Grant In Aid contract (hereinafter referred to as “Amendment 1°) dated
this seventh day of September 2016, is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of
Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department”) and Helping Hands
Outreach Ministries, Inc. (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor”), a nonprofit corporation with a place
of business at 50 Lowell Street, Manchester, NH 03101.
WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract”) approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on August 26, 2015 (Item #12), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the tenns
and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules and tenms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Generai Provisions, Paragraph 18, the State may, amend this contract by
written agreement of the parties and subsequent approval of the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS the parties agree to amend the scope of work to include respite care services in support of
the Safe Stations program; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree as follows:

1.) Amend Form P-37, Section 1.8 Price Limitation to read:
$258,542

2.) Add Exhibit A, Amendment 1

3.) Add Exhibit B, Amendment 1

4.) Add Exhibit B-1, Amendment 1

CADHHS/100213



Respite Care Services in support of Safe Stations program

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written beiow,

L

State of New Hampshire
Deparinient of Health and Human Services

Heiping Hands Outreach Ministries, inc.

/e [l (. Db

y &

Date’ Richard D. Doyle
. Executive Director

Ackn nt:

Stateo;%ﬁ:&, County of_A{_d)M___ on_oale? ’Zod' , before the
undersigned , personally appeared the person identified above, or satisfactorily proven to be the
person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that she executed this document in the capacity
indiated above.

Signature of Notary Public

ustice of the Peace

of Justice of the Peace

Jonathan D. Colbath
Notary Public, State of NH
My Commission Expires
June 10, 2020

CADHHSH00213



Respite Care Services in support of Safe Stations program

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.
OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

JAY L/A/{/V\/

Date 7 B N'me

1 hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Qovernor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

CADHHS/00213



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit A, Amendment 1

Scope of Services

1. Scope of Services
The Contractor shall provide overnight crisis respite care to clients referred by the Safe Stations
program.

The Safe Stations Program is a Manchester-based access point whereby the ten 24/7/365 fire
houses throughout the city serve as a designated safe environment for individuals with
substance use disorder seeking assistance. Anyone can walk into a fire station, be medically
cleared and then be immediately connected with a service provider to begin their treatment and
recovery.

1.1. The Contractor shall:

1.1.1. Ensure that a minimum of 16 beds are reserved for Safe Stations clients between
the hours of 3:00pm-9:00am

1.1.2. Support the goal of having clients moved into an appropriate level of care within
3 days of admission to the respite center

1.1.3. Provide dinner and breakfast meals to Safe Stations clients in their care
1.1.4. Provide qualified staff at the crisis respite center.

1.1.5. Work with local shelters and overnight care facilities to find alternative overnight
respite care for clients denied admission to the center on the basis of lack of
capacity. The Contractor shall:

1.1.6. Notify a case manager from the Serenity Place WRAP program when a client is
denied admission due to capacity

1.1.7. Attempt to notify clients who were denied admission based on lack of capacity
when a bed becomes available.

1.1.8. Notify a case manager from the Serenity Place WRAP program about discharge
prior to discharging the client. The Contractor shall ensure:

1.1.9. Ensure contact information for the client is collected.
1.1.10. Ensure ciient case managers are notified of discharge within 1 hour of discharge.

1.1.11. Notify a representative of the Serenity Place WRAP program within 1 hour if the
client is transported to the hospital or emergency room for medical care

1.1.12. Work collaboratively with Safe Stations representatives, Serenity Place, and
other community providers to ensure continuity of care for Safe Station’s clients.

1.2. Comply with all applicable terms contained in Exhibit A of this contract.

Exhibit A Contractor Initials M
Page 1 of 1 Date ZZ?'Z/E



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit B, Amendment 1

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Price Limitation of $138,542, for the
services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A, Amendment 1, Scope of Services.

Payment for said services shall be made as follows:

1. Upon Contract approval by the Govemor and Executive Council, the Vendor may invoice the
Department for up to $25,000 to be used for program start up and staff readiness activities. Such
invoice must be accompanied by a signed copy of the MOU for Safe Stations support between
the Contractor and the City of Manchester.

2. Thereafter, The Contractor will submit an invoice by the tenth working day of each month, which
identifies and requests reimbursement for authorized expenses as identified in Exhibit B-1,
Amendment 1, incurred in the prior month. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within

thirty (30) days of receipt of each invoice for Contractor services provided pursuant to this
Agreement.

The Contractor shall comply with all of the applicable terms outlined in Exhibit B of this Contract.

Exhibit B Contractor Initials ZQZEE
Page tof 1 Date i/z‘zrlé



Appendix C

Exhibit B-1 Amendment 1

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
COMPLETE ONE BUDGETY FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

Bidder Name: Helping Hands Outreach Ministries, Inc.

Budget Request for: Safe Station Respite

(Name of RFP)

Budget Perlod: 09/21/16- 6/30/2017

‘1.‘ Total SalamMIaggsl- Taxesl Work. Comp.

~117.072.00

11707200

3

2. Employee Benefits ] 6,175.00 $ 6,175.00

3. Consultants $ - 3 -

4. Equipment $ - b ~
Rental $ - 3 -
Repair and Maintenance $ - 3 -
Purchase/Depreciation 3 - b -

5. Supplies: 3 - $ -
Educational $ - ] -
Lab $ - 3 -
Pharmacy $ - 3 -
Medical $ - $ -
Office $ - 3 T

16. Travel p - 3 -

7. Occupancy b - ] -

8. Cument Expenses $ - $ -
Telephone/ Cable/ Intemet 3 1,112.00 $ 1,112.00
Postage b - $ -
Subscriptions $ - $ -
Audit and Legal $ - $ -
insurance $ - 3 -
Board Expenses $ - 3 -

9. Software $ - $ -

10. Marketing/Communications $ - $ -

11._Staff Education and Training $ - s -

12. Subcontracts/Agreements $ - 3 -

[13._Other (specific details mandatory): $ - $ -

Utilities- Gas, Oil, Eletricity $ 10,136.00 3 10,136.00

Food $ 4,047.00 3 4,047.00

3 - $ -
TOTAL 3 138,042. TS 138,642.00 |
Revised 01722113 9/?//[’
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

OFFICE OF HUMAN SERVICES
BUREAU OF HOMELESS AND HOUSING SERVICES

Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner 129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3857

. 603-271-9196  1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9196

Mary Ann Cooney FAX: 603-271-5139 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov
Associate Commissioner Y
S *0a
- o
July 16, 2015

Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council

State House Qé‘ﬁ\(ﬂ a d\. ve
S

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Heaith and Human Services, Bureau of Homeless and
Housing Services to enter into retroactive agreements with the vendors listed below the for
State Grant-in-Aid Funds program, in an amount not to éxceed $5,759,549, effective retroactive
from July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2017, upon Governor and Executive Council approval.
These contracts are 100% General Funds.

Vendor

Number Vendor Address Amount

Vendor

464 Chestnut Street, PO
Child and Family Services | 177166-B002 Box 448 Manchester NH | $303,538

03105
| Community Action
. 642 Central Avenue
zzzzfyrshlp of Strafford 177200-B004 Dover NH 03821-1060 $71,950

2 Industrial Park Drive,
177200-B004 PO Box 1016, Concord $399,564
NH 03302-1016

238 North Main Street,

Community Action Program
Belknap-Merrimack

Concord Coalition to End

TBD PO Box 3933, Concord $80,000
Homelessness NH 03302
600 Lafayette Road
Cross Roads House, Inc. 166570-B001 Portsmouth NH 03801 $357,190
I . 122 Market Street
Families in Transition 157730-B001 Manchester NH 03101 $602,784
Harbor Homes, Inc. 155358-8001 | 45 High Street $78,100

Nashua NH 03060
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Headrest, Inc. 175226-R001 | 14 Church Streel $101,758
el P T WU P
i
Marguerite’s Place, Inc. 157465-B001 zz;al:': :g%?oeo $60,000
e e e
My Friend's Place 156274-8001 | 358 Iashinglon Street | 5191,624
zgznr;?ggrsnrggi(? gﬁgm.m 155510-B001 ggnﬁg:‘ e 03302 $554,746
Sexual Violence
| o | (SR s
souther New Hampshire | 1771g8-8006 234‘3,”3 :rtwr:r?:stpe(r)NBI-? * | s157.787
ervices, Inc. 03108
gg;‘\ff‘c":sﬁ? Community | 122611 001 | B, g(%m;:g:v s O $627,804
' 03431-0603
The Bridge House, Inc. | 165288-B001 g?fm%igmm e | $280,000
The Friends Program. Inc. | 154387-B001 é%zn ;?3’;3‘%‘%%‘1’ et | $417,454
e Front Door Agency. | 156244-8001 Lgs%'l‘f:;j’HSgggé . $165,000
T e | Bomme | sanie
The Way Home, Inc. 166673-B001 ﬂ:nfﬁ;:f; ?}Leg; o5 | 3374660
e PR ET e g P

Funds to supportiis request are anticipated to be available in the following accounts in
State Fiscal Year 2016 and State Fiscal Year 2017 upon the availability and continued
appropriations of funds in the future operating budget, with the ability to adjust encumbrances
between State Fiscal years, without further approval from the Govermor and Executive Council,
through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.
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05-95-42-423010-7928 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS, HHS:HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, EMERGENCY
SHELTERS

State Fiscal | ClassiObject Title Amount
2016 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services $2,879,775
2017 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services $2,879,774

$5,759,549

See Fiscal Details attached

EXPLANATION
This request is retroactive because the awards were not made until June 9", 2(_)15.

The purpose of this request is for the provision of intervention services and/or
emergency shelter and related services, including essential services, to homeless individuals.

This package includes twenty-three (23) of the twenty-seven (27) vendors chosen to
receive State Grant-in-Aid Program funding, and represents $5,759,549 of the total $6,569,941
being funded.

The State Grant-in-Aid (SGIA) Funds program provides funding support for the following:

Emergency Shelter - Any facility, the primary purpose of which is to provide temporary
shelter for homeless individuals or families. Non-permanent shelter, which is crisis-oriented and
designed to meet the basic needs of homeless clients. Allowable activities include: Essential
Services, such as assistance in finding permanent housing, employment counseling, substance
abuse counseling, assistance in accessing other community services; staff salaries and
benefits; and shelter operational costs such as administration, rent, utilities, insurance, and
supplies. :

Transitional Shelter - A time-limited independent housing residence, designed to
provide a person or family, safe semi-private housing and comprehensive supportive services.
Case management, educational or rehabilitative programs and referrals help to strengthen
resiliency, enhance life skills and financial independence, and prepare for a successful trarisition
to permanent housing. Allowable activities include: Essential Services, such as assistance in
finding permanent housing, employment counseling, substance abuse counseling, assistance in
accessing other community services; staff salaries and benefits; and transitional shelter
operational costs such as administration, rent, utilities, insurance, and supplies.

Specialty Shelter - An emergency shelter for desigried solely to serve the specialized
needs of an identifiable subgroup of homeless individuals. Allowable activities include: Essential
Services, such as assistance in finding permanent housing, employmerit counseling, substance
abuse counseling, assistance in accessing other community services, staff salaries and
benefits; and specialty shelter operational costs such as administration, rent, utilities, insurance,
and supplies.
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Intervention Services — Non-shelter services that assist persons who are homeless, or
at imminent risk of homelessness through case management, assisted referrals, or other
targeted services intended to assist persons experiencing homelessness obtain or maintain
shelter. Examples of intervention activities include (but are not limited to) information and
referrals to assist clients in exiting homelessness, assessing a client's eligibility for
shelter/housing placement, legal services, HMIS, and drop-in centers or other facilities where
clients have access to case managers as well as telephone/intemet access for education,
housing, employment purposes.

The Department of Health of Human Services received a total of thirty-eight (38)
applications from twenty-eight (28) agencies for State Grant-in-Aid Funding Program in
response to a Request for Applications that was posted to the Departments website from
December 5, 2014 through February 13, 2015. After review of the applicants, by a team of
qualified personnel from the Bureau of Homeless and Housing, twenty-seven (27) agencies
were chosen. Priority was given to vendors that provide Emergency, Speciaity and Transitional
Shelter services.

The attached agreements call for the provision of these services for two years and
reserves the Department'’s right to renew the agreements for up to two (2) additional years,
based upon satisfactory delivery of services, and continued availability of funds and Govemor
and Executive Council approval.

Should Governor and Executive Council not authorized this request, Individuals and
families who are without housing and resources will resort to seeking local shelter in places that
are not fit for people to live in, or will attempt to travel to shelters in other communities. This will
increase the likelihood that homeless people will be in danger of injury or death, and wilt be cut
off from basic supports for health, education and treatment.

Area Served: Statewide

Source of Funds: 100% General Funds

Respectfully submitted,

Associate Commissioner

Approved by:

Nicholas A. Toump
Commissioner K

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.




State Grant-In-Aid (SGIA) Funds
Fiscal Details

05-95-42-423010-7928 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS,
HHS:HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, EMERGENCY SHELTERS (100% General
Funds)

Child and Family Services (Vendor# 177166 - B002)

State Fiscal Year Class/Object Title Amount

Contracts for
2016 102-500734 Program Services $151,769

Contracts for
2017 102-500734 Program Services $151,769

Sub-total $303,538

Community Action Partnership of Strafford County (Vendor #177200-B004)

State Fiscal Year Class/Object Title Amount
: . Contracts for

-2016 102-500734 Program Services $35,975
Contracts for

2017 102-500734 Program Services $35,975

Sub-total $71,950

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack (Vendor #177203-B001)

State Fiscal Year Class/Object Title Amount
Contracts for

2016 102-500734 Program Services $199,782
Contracts for

2017 102-500734 Program Services $199,782

Sub-total $399,564

Concord Coalition to End Homelessness (Vendor # TBD)

State Fiscal Year Class/Object Title Amount
Contracts for

2016 102-500734 Program Services $40,000
Contracts for

2017 102-500734 Program Services $40,000

Sub-total $80,000

Page 1 of 6



State Grant-In-Aid (SGIA) Funds
Fiscal Details

Cross Roads House, Inc (Vendor# 166570 - B001)

State Fiscal Year Class/Object Title Amount
Contracts for

2016 102-500734 Program Services $178,595
Contracts for

2017 102-500734 Program Services $178,595

Sub-total $357,190

Families in Transition (Vendor #157730-B001)

State Fiscal Year Class/Object Title Amount
Contracts for

2016 102-500734 Program Services $301,392
Contracts for

201? | 102-500734 Program Services $301,392

Sub-total $602,784

Family Promise of Greater Nashua/ Anne Marie House {Vendor #159372 - B001)

State Fiscal Year Class/Object Title Amount
Contracts for
2016 102-500734 Program Services $22,428
2017 102-500734 Contracts for $22,428
Program Services
Sub-total $44,856

Harbor Homes, Inc. (Vendor # 155358-B001)

State Fiscal Year Class/Object Title Amount
Contracts for

2016 102-500734 Program Services $39,050
Contracts for

2017 102-500734 Program Services $39,050

Sub-total $78,100

Headrest Inc. (Vendor# 175226 - R001)

State Fiscal Year Class/Object Title Amount
Contracts for

2016 102-500734 Program Services $50,879
Contracts for

2017 102-500734 Program Services $50,879

Sub-total $101,758

Page 2 of 6




State Grant-In-Aid (SGIA) Funds

Fiscal Details
Helping Hands Outreach Center (Vendor# 174226 - R001)
State Fiscal Year Class/Object Title Amount
Contracts for
2016 102-500734 Program Services $60,000
Contracts for
2017 102-500734 Program Services $60,000
Sub-total $120,000
Laconia Area Community Land Trust (Vendor# 156571 - B001)
State Fiscal Year Class/Object Title Amount
Contracts for
2016 102-500734 Program Services $42,500
Contracts for
2017 102-500734 Program Services $42,500
Sub-total $85,000
Marguerite's Place, Inc. (Vendor# 157465-8001)
State Fiscal Year Class/Object Title Amount
Contracts for
2016 102-500734 Program Services $30,000
Contracts for
2017 102-500734 Program Services $30,000
Sub-total $60,000
Merrimack Valley Assistance Program (Vendor# 157934 - B001)
State Fiscal Year Class/Object Title Amount
Contracts for
2016 102-500734 Program Services $50,850
Contracts for
2017 102-500734 Program Services $50,850
Sub-total $101,700
My Friend's Place (Vendor# 156274 - B001)
State Fiscal Year Class/Object Title Amount
Contracts for
2016 102-500734 Program Services $95,912
Contracts for
2017 102-500734 Program Services $95,912
Sub-total $191,824

Page 3of6




State Grant-In-Aid (SGIA) Funds

Fiscal Details
Nashua Soup Kitchen & Shelter, Inc (Vendor# 174173 - R001)

State Fiscal Year Class/Object Title Amount

Contracts for
2016 102-500734 Program Services $115,599

Contracts for
2017 102-500734 Program Services $115,599
Sub-total $231,198

New Horizons for NH (Vendor# 175227 - R001)

State Fiscal Year Class/Object Title Amount
Contracts for

2016 102-500734 Program Services $203,086
Contracts for

2017 102-509734 Program Services $203,086

Sub-total $406,172

New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence (Vendor# 155510 - B001)

State Fiscal Year Class/Object Title Amount
Contracts for
2016 102-500734 Program Services $277,373
Contracts for
2017 102-500734 Program Services $277.373
Sub-total $554,746
New Hampshire Legal Assistance (Vendor# 154648 - B001)
State Fiscal Year Class/Object Title Amount
Contracts for
2016 102-500734 Program Services $50,000
Contracts for
2017 102-500734 Program Services $50,000
Sub-total $100,000
Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. (Vendor # 177198-B006)
State Fiscal Year Class/Object Title Amount
Contracts for
2016 102-500734 Program Services $78,894
Contracts for
2017 102-500734 Program Services $78,893
Sub-total $157,787
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Southwestern Community Services, Inc. (Vendor # 177511-P001)

State Grant-In-Aid (SGIA) Funds

Fiscal Details

State Fiscal Year Class/Object Title Amount
Contracts for
2016 102-500734 Program Services $313,902
Contracts for
2017 102-500734 Program Services $313,902
Sub-total $627,804
The Bridge House Shelter (Vendor # 165288-B001)
State Fiscal Year Class/Object Title Amount
Contracts for
2016 102-500734 Program Services $140,000
Contracts for
2017 102-500734 Program Services $140,000
Sub-total $280,000
The Friends Program, Inc. (Vendor# 154987 - B001)
State Fiscal Year Class/Object Title Amount
Contracts for
2016 102-500734 Program Services $208,727
Contracts for
2017 102-500734 Program Services $208,727
Sub-total $417,454
The Front Door Agency, Inc. (Vendor # 156244-B001)
State Fiscal Year Class/Object Title Amount
Contracts for
2016 102-500734 Program Services $82,500
Contracts for
2017 102-500734 Program Services $82,500
Sub-total $165,000

The Salvation Army Carey House Homeless Shelter (Vendor # 177627-B001)

State Fiscal Year Class/Object Title Amount |
Contracts for
2016 102-500734 Program Services $64,083
Contracts for
2017 102-500734 Program Services $64,083
Sub-total $128,166
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The Salvation Army McKenna House (Vendor # 177627-B003)

State Grant-In-Aid (SGIA) Funds

Fiscal Details

State Fiscal Year Class/Object Title Amount
Contracts for
2016 102-500734 Program Services $101,191
Contracts for
2017 102-500734 Program Services $101,191
Sub-total $202,382
The Way Home, Inc. (Vendor #166673-B001)
State Fiscal Year Class/Object Title Amount
Contracts for
2016 102-500734 Program Services $187,330
Contracts for
2017 102-500734 Program Services $187,330
Sub-total $374,660
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. (Vendor #177195)
State Fiscal Year Class/Object Title Amount
Contracts for
2016 102-500734 Program Services $163,154
Contracts for
2017 102-500734 Program Services $163,154
Sub-total $326,308
Grand Total $6,569,941
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FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 1/09)

Subject: State Grant-In-Aid Funds Program
AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS
1. IDENTIFICATION.
1.1  State Agency Name 12  State Agency Address
Department of Health and Human Services 129 Pleasant Street
Office of Human Services Concord, NH 03301
13  Contractor Name 1.4 Contractor Address
Helping Hands Qutreach Ministries, Inc. 50 Lowell Street
Manchester NH 03101
1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6  Account Number 1.7  Completion Date 1.8  Price Limitation
Number
603-623-8778 05-95-42-423010-7928-102- | June 30, 2017 $120,000

500731

1.9 Contracting Offficer for State Agency

Enc D. Botrin, Director

(603) 271-9558

1.10  State Agency Telephone Number

1.11 Contractor Signature 1.12  Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
W prcn 22 Tree
CxLlunive Bresaon  Zlglis |

1.13  Acknowledgement: State of NH_, County of Méafpﬁl\

On O‘Zﬂlﬁnfore the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily proven to be the
person whose pame is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated in block

1.2,

lic or Justice of the Peace

Thomas S. Pierog
Natary Fublic &:xa‘e o1 Maw Hampshire
My Com Expres Oal 19 2019

s ' or Justice of the Peace

Themas S QCY:)}

Nok—an‘ ‘RJ L‘tQ

1.14  State Agency Signsture

1.15 Name and Tijtle of State Agency Signatory

et G

M pen

1.16 App@ N.H. n@afnem of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

By:

Director, On:

1.17

s MAeN 7 g pifis o

Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution)

s

1.18  Approval by thd'Governor and ¥xecutiveCouncil

By:

- f3
]

On:
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (*State™), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor™) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
(“Services™).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, this
Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
not become cffective until the date the Governor and
Executive Council approve this Agreement (“Effective Date”).
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the cvent that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
paymeunts hercunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. [n the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwisc payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitied by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.

Page 2 of 4

5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
18.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. In addition, the Contractor shall comply with all
applicable copyright laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
cmployment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination,

6.3 If this Agrecment is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal
Employment Opportunity™), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor’s books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined cffort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurcment, administration or performance of this
Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement. '

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State.

Countractor Initials: M’
Date: #g [‘[21



8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(“Event of Default™):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hercunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has becn received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior writtcn approval of the State.

10. TERMINATION. In the cvent of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report™) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price eamned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copics of the Termination

Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an ecmployee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, cmployees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State ar receive any benefits, workers’ compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written consent of
the N.H. Department of Administrative Services. None of the
Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor without the
prior written consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold banmiess the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive gencral liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $250,000 per claim and $2,000,000 per
occurrence; and

14.1.2 fire and extended coverage insurance covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for usc in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agrecment.
Contractor shall also fusnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than fifteen (15) days prior to the
cxpiration date of each of the insurance policies. The
certificate(s) of insurance and any renewals thereof shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. Each
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certificate(s) of insurance shall contain a clause requiring the
insurer to endcavor to provide the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, no less than ten
(10) days prior written notice of cancellation or modification
of the policy.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
(“Workers’ Compensation™).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers’ Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall furnish
the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, proof of Workers® Compensation in the manner
described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any applicable
renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers’ Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or bencfit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce cach and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire,

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS,
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is
the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual -
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement arc
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in
the interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of
this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set forth
in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
cffect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shail
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
State Grant in Aid Funds Program

Exhibit A

SCOPE OF SERVICES

State Grant In Ald Program
1. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT

11.

1.2

1.3.

14.

1.5.

1.6.

1.7.

Notwithstanding any provisions of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of
the State are contingent upon availability of state funding under the State Grant-In-
Aid (SGIA) Funds Program. in no event shall the State be liable for costs incurred or
payment of any services performed by the Contractor prior to the availability of State
Funding. The State makes no representation as to the level of funding that will be
available, if any, for this Agreement.

The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may impact on the
Services described herein, the State has the right, following consuitation with the
Contractor, to modify service priorities and expenditure requirements for the funds
provided under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith.

Matching Requirement

13.1. The Contractor must provide 100% matching funds. Matching funds may include:

1.3.1.1.  Cash, anticipated or received, if it will be spent during the grant year,
including other anticipated state funds.

1.3.1.2.  In-kind (donations, volunteer time valued at $10 per hour, professional
services rendered on-site at customary value) during grant year. The
Contractor will document in-kind match through their audit.

1.3.1.3. Loans such as mortgages or construction loans.
1.3.1.4. Real property depreciation may not be used as match.

The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance service
they will provide to person with limited English proficiency to ensure meaningful
access to their program and/or services within ten (10) days of the contract effective
date.

The Contractor shall pursue any and all appropriate public sources of funds that are
applicable to the funding of the Services, operations, prevention, acquisition, or
rehabilitation. Appropriate records shall be maintained by the Contractor to
document actual funds received or denials of funding from such public sources of
funds.

All programs under this contract are required to be licensed to provide client level
data into the New Hampshire Homeless Management information System (NH
HMIS). Programs under this contract must be familiar with and foliow NH HMIS
policy, including specific information that is required for data entry, accuracy of data
entered, and time required for data entry. Current NH HMIS policy can be accessed
electronicaily through the following website: http://www.nh-hmis.org.

Except as otherwise modified in paragraphs of EXHIBIT A, the Contractor agrees to
comply with the program narrative, budget detail and narrative, and amendments
thereto, for Services, operations, prevention, acquisition, or rehabilitation as
approved by the Bureau of Homeless and Housing Services, Office of Human
Services, Department of Health and Human Services, hereafter referred to as the
State.

Helping Hands Outreach Miristries, inc_ Exdibit A Cantractr initials m
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
State Grant In Aid Funds Program

Exhibit A

2. SERVICES:

2.1.  The Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that during the term of this agreement,
based on the continued availability of state funding and in accordance with New
Hampshire Emergency Shelter State Grant-In-Aid Funds Program RSA 126-A:25,
126-A:27, 126-A:28 , 126-A:29 and He-M 314, it will utilize SGIA funds for contract
services specified in Exhibit B of this agreement:

Emergency Shelter - Any facility, the primary purpose of which is to provide
temporary shelter for homeless individuals or families. Non-permanent shelter,
which is crisis-oriented and designed to meet the basic needs of homeless clients.
Allowable activities include: Essential Services, such as assistance in finding
permanent housing, employment counseling, substance abuse counsefing,
assistance in accessing other community services; staff salaries and benefits; and
shelter operational costs such as administration, rent, utilities, insurance, and
supplies.

Transitional Shelter - A time-limited independent housing residence, designed to
provide a person or family, safe semi-private housing and comprehensive supportive
services. Case management, educational or rehabilitative programs and referrals
help to strengthen resiliency, enhance life skills and financial independence, and
prepare for a successful transition to permanent housing. Aliowable activities include:
Essential Services, such as assistance in finding permanent housing, employment
counseling, substance abuse counseling, assistance in accessing other community
services; staff salaries and benefits; and transitional shelter operational costs such
as administration, rent, utilities, insurance, and supplies.

Specialty Sheilter - An emergency shelter for designed solely to serve the
specialized needs of an identifiable subgroup of homeless individuals. Allowable
activities include: Essential Services, such as assistance in finding permanent
housing, employment counseling, substance abuse counseling, assistance in
accessing other community services; staff salaries and benefits; and specialty shelter
operational costs such as administration, rent, utilities, insurance, and supplies.

Intervention Services — Non-shelter services that assist persons who are homeless,
or at imminent risk of homelessness through case management, assisted referrals,
or other targeted services intended to assist persons experiencing homelessness
obtain or maintain shelter. Examples of intervention activities include (but are not
limited to) information and referrals to assist clients in exiting homelessness,
assessing a client's eligibility for shelter/housing placement, legal services, HMIS,
and drop-in centers or other facilities where clients have access to case managers
as well as telephone/intemet access for education, housing, employment purposes.

Helping Hands Outrasch Ministries, inc. Exhibit A Ci Inials W
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3. PROGRAM REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

3.1.

The Contractor shall provide semiannual and annual report information data by
service madality describing the number of unduplicated cases served, units of
services rendered, and staff required to provide the service, as may be required by
the State. Monthly reports may be required at the discretion of the State. Reports
shall include, but are nat limited to, details of compliance with the following key
program outcomes:

3.1.1. For Intervention;

3.1.1.1. 70% of households that receive this intervention assistance will achieve
immediate housing stability.

3.1.1.2. Atleast 60% of househaolds that receive this intervention assistance will
not expenence an episode of homelessness within 12 months.

3.1.2. For Shelter;

3.2.

33.
34.

3.1.21. The percentage/number of program participants will exit the program to
permanent housing will meet, or exceed, the goal proposed in the
programs funding proposal. '

3.1.2.2. The average length of stay in this program will be reduced by the
percentage/number of days proposed in the programs funding
proposal.re.

The Contractor shall submit an Annual Performance Report (APR) to the Bureau of
Homeless and Housing Services (BHHS), within thirty (30) days after the
Completion Date, that summarizes the results of the Project Activities, showing in
particular how the Project Activites have been performed. The Annual
Performance Report shall be in the form required or specified by the State.

The Contractor shall submit Other Reports as requested by the State.

Failure to submit the above reports or enter data into NH-HMIS in a timely fashion
could result in the delay or withholding of reimbursements until such reports are
received or data entries are confirned by the BHHS.

4. CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION

4.1. The Contractor shall have appropriate levels of staff attend all meetings or trainings
requested by the BHHS. To the extent possible, BHHS shall notify the contractor of
the need to attend such meetings five working days in advance of each meeting.

42. The Bureau Administrator of BHHS or designee may observe performance,
activities and documents under this Agreement; however, these personnel may not
unreasonably interfere with contractor performance.

4.3. The Contractor shall inform BHHS of any staffing changes.

44. Contract records shall be retained for a period of five (5) years following completion
of the contract and receipt of final payment by the Contractor, or until an audit is
completed and all questions arising there from are resolved, whichever is later.

4.5. Changes to the contract services that do not affect its scope, duration, or financial
limitations may be made upon mutual agreement between the Contractor and the
B8HHS.
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Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

The following financial conditions apply to the scope of services as detailed in Exhibit A — State
Grant—in-Aid Funds Program.

This contract is funded 100% by the New Hampshire General Fund as follows:
Total Amount State Grant—in-Aid Funds Program;

SFY16 not to exceed $60,000.00

SFY17 not to exceed $60,000.00

July 1, 2015 —~ June 30, 2017: not to exceed $120,000.00

Funds allocation under this agreement for State Grant-in-Aid Funds Program;
Specialty Shelter Services $120,000.00

Total prbgram amount $120,000.00

1. Subject to the availability of State general funds, General Provisions of this Agreement and
in consideration of the satisfactory completion of the services to be performed under this
Agreement, the State agrees to fund the Contractor for State Grant-in-Aid Funds Program,
in an amount not to exceed and for the time period specified above.

2. REPORTS
As part of the performance of the Project Activities, the Contractor covenants and agrees to
submit the following:

2.1. Audited Financial Report: The Audited Financial Report shall be prepared in

2.2.

accordance with the regulations that implement OMB Circular A-133. Three (3)
copies of the audited financial report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days of the
completion of said report to the State.

Where the Contractor is not subject to the requirements of OMB Circular A-133,
within ninety (90) days after the Completion or Termination Date, one copy of an
audited financial report shall be submitted to the State. Said audit shall be
conducted utilizing the guidelines set forth in “Standards for Audit of Governmental
Organizations, Program Activities, and Functions® by the Comptroller General of the
United States.

3. PROJECT COSTS: PAYMENT SCHEDULE; REVIEW BY THE STATE

31.

Helping Hands Outreach Ministries, inc. Exhibit 8 Contractor Initiais
State Grant-in-Aid Funds Program

Project Costs: As used in this Agreement, the term “Project Costs™ shall mean all
expenses directly or indirectly incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the
Project Activities, as determined by the State to be eligible and allowable for
payment in accordance with Public Law 102-550 as well as allowable cost standards
set forth in OMB Circular A-87 as revised from time to time and with the rules,
regulations, and guidelines established by the State. Nonprofit subcontractors shall
meet the requirements of OMB Circular A-122.
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3.2. Payment of Project Costs: Subject to the availability of State general funds, General
Provisions of this Agreement and in consideration of the satisfactory completion of
the services to be performed under this Agreement, the State agrees to fund the
Contractor for State Grant-in-Aid Funds Program in an amount not to exceed as
specified above. Reimbursement requests for all Project Costs shall be submitted on
a monthly basis and accompanied by an invoice from the Contractor for the amount
of each requested disbursement along with a payment request form as designated
by the State, which shall be completed and signed by the Contractor. The
Contractor shall provide additional financial information if requested by the State to
verify expenses.

3.3. Review of the State Disallowance of Costs: At any time during the performance of
the Services, and upon receipt of the Annual Performance Report, Termination
Report or Audited Financial Report, the State may review all Project Costs incurred
by the Contractor and all payments made to date. Upon such review the State shall
disallow any items of expenses that are not determined to be aliowable or are
determined to be in excess of actual expenditures, and shall, by written notice
specifying the disallowed expenditures, infoom the Conftractor of any such
disallowance. [f the State disallows costs for which payment has not yet been made,
it shall refuse to pay such costs. Any amounts awarded to the Contractor pursuant
to this agreement are subject to recapture. The funds authorized to be expended
under this Agreement shall be used only for The State Grant—in-Aid Funds Program.

4. USE OF GRANT FUNDS

4.1. The State agrees to provide payment for actual costs, up to the not to exceed
amount for the State Grant-in-Aid Funds Program as specified in this Exhibit.

42. The Contractor may amend the contract budget through line item increases,
decreases or the creation of new line items provided these amendments do not
exceed the contract price. Such amendments shall only be made upon written
request to and written approval from the State.

4.3. Conformance to OMB Circular A-110: Grant funds are to be used only in
accordance with procedures, requirements, and principles specified in OMB Circular
A-110.

5. CONTRACTOR FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

5.1. Fiscal Control: The Contractor shall establish fiscal control and fund accounting
procedures which assure proper disbursement of, and accounting for, grant funds
and any required nonfederal expenditures. This responsibility applies to funds
disbursed in direct operations of the Contractor.

5.2. The Contractor shall maintain a financial management system that complies with
Attachment G of A-102, “Standards of Contractor Financial Management Systems”
or such equivalent system as the State may require. Requests for payment shall be
made according to EXHIBIT B, Section 3.2 of this Agreement.

Helping Hands Outreach Ministries, inc. Exhibit B Contractor Initials /2t
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: f the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the detenmination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentatnon
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals deciared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
heaning in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
detenmined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a detenmination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in
excess of costs;

Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials 1"_’_""_
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7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Defauit hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the foliowing records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and onginal evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enroliment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to detemmine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Govemments, and Non
Profit Organizations” and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Govemmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2, Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall retum to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disaliowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All infoomation, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor’s responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attomey or guardian.
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1.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following

times if requested by the Department.

11.1.  Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of
all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2.  Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement:

13.1.  The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. if any governmental license or
penmit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with locat building and zoning codes, by-
laws and regulations.

Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. f the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or
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more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardiess of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non-
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http://www.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national ongin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title V1 of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistieblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

CONTRACTOR EMPLOYEE WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS AND REQUIREMENT TO INFORM EMPLOYEES OF
WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistieblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at

41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor’s ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shalt do the following:

19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor’s
performance is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis
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19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed
19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursabie in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines™ and which contains the regulations govemning the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL. If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligibie individuals hereunder, shali mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract. '

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

Exhidit C - Special Provisions Contractor Initiats /22
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REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is
replaced as follows:

4 CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the
Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the
following language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but nat limited to, any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested.

10.4 [n the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

3. Subparagraph 14.1.1 of the General Provisions of this contract, is deleted and the following
subparagraph is added:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability against all claims of bodily injury, death or property damage,
in amounts of not less than $250,000 per claim and $1,000,000 per occurrence; and

4, The Division reserves the right to renew the Contract for up to two additional years, subject to the
continued availability of funds, satisfactory performance of services and approval by the Govemor
and Executive Council.

S
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-69Q, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE | - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part ll of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, of govemment wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,

Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee’s
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. - Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace,

1.22. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations
occurring in the workplace;

1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

14. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
empiloyment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days afier such
conviction;

1.5.  Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such natices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;
1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or
1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local heaith,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;
1.7. . Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Perfformance (street address, city, county, state, zip code}) (list each location)

Check 0O if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Contractor Name:
2z )ss pied L0, I
Date/ 7 Name: 2, cqnery O . Dovyrg

THe: £x€Ecury ve. Dinecro s
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
*Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
*Medicaid Program under Title XIX

*Community Services Block Grant under Title Vi

*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to infiuence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-1.)

3. The mdersigned shali require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all iers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Contractor Name:

T

?//3/ /5

Date /' Name: ZicH A D O DJYI-(
Title: EXECeTI b DirécoA
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in deniat
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services’ (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to fumish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. [f it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Govermment, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learms
that its certification was eroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered
transaction,” “participant,” “person,” “primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and
“voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarmed, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. E€ach
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participantin a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal govemment, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or defauit.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and betief, that it and its
principals:

11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had
a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezziement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destructnon of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a govemmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (1)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or locat) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared inefigible, or
voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitied “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name:

H1z)1s | W 4

Date ' Name: Zicttand D, DovVif
Ttle: Exgcurive Direcron
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discniminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Pian requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
sefvices or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
govemment services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. it does not include
empioyment discrimination;

-28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — OJJDP Grant Programs), 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

-28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. Faise certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.
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in the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name:

DZ!B,//H | W// Mz

Name: Zicrangp b. De Y€
Tie: Evecuiive Dirscron
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local govemments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to chiidren’s services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compiiance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name:
Hi2 i W /é/ A, L
Date’ Name: g2, #ARD D. Do @ui

Tite: gxgeunve Diveco
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, “Business
Associate” shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and "Covered
Entity” shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

1) Definitions.

a. “Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. “Business Associate” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations. .

¢. “Covered Entity” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. “Designated Record Set” shall have the same meaning as the term “designated record set”
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. “Data Aggregation™ shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. “Health Care Operations” shall have the same meaning as the term “health care operations”
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. 'HITECH Act” means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIil, Subtitie D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. “HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. “Individual” shall have the same meaning as the term “individual” in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. “Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. “Protected Health Information” shall have the same meaning as the term “protected health
information” in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

32014 Exhibit | Contractor Initisls_/M1
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I. “"Required by Law" shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law” in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. “Secretary” shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. “Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

0. “Unsecured Protected Health Information” means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthonzed individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - Ali terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH
Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
1. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
I As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered
Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI wili be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shail not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
heaith information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed

o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been
mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its intemal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PH! received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity’'s compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to retumn or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (1). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor’s business associate
agreements with Contractor’s intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate’s compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as wouid be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

i Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PH! in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. in the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual’s request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

L Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall retum or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If retum or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PH! has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Enti

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate’s
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity’s knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit |. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Requlatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shail have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit |, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

C. Data Qwnership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule.

312014 Exhibit | Contractor Initals /344
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit |

e Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit | or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit | are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit | regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, retum or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) |, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed thig Exhibit I.
ecpint Huoss Oureeack Mo

N/L/bh‘#[ (Zﬁcrmmﬁ D Dovee Zoe

The State Name of the Contractor

Signature (f/(u'tﬁonze(Rep rpsentative  Signatire of Authorized Representative

"445_1{%1&4 ( ?CZQ% ZZ;cdﬂ(}b D . I doYee
Ndme of Authorized Rep/sgntatlve Name of Authorized Representative

/%Torm 0 s T RE CoaTi VE Dinecron

Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative
>/t~ & Hizlis
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:

Name of entity
Amount of award
Funding agency
NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
Program source
Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
Location of the entity
Principle place of performance
Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:
10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and
10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

2OENONAWNS

o

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name:

7/{3/'5' Wpéz’“

Date/ ?;Ee: ichind D. Doy
‘EXgcunvég Dirécore
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Exhibit J

EORM A

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, | certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1.

2.

The DUNS number for your entity is: 3% 12991

In your business or organization’s preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

L NO YES
if the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

- Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your

business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Intemal Revenue Code of
19867

NO ¥ Yes
if the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

if the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
arganization are as follows:

Name: Amount:
Name: Amaount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Exhibit J - Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contracior Initials_ /A
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